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Corporate statement
superglass Holdings plc is the leading 
independent glasswool insulation solutions 
provider to the UK and Irish markets.
The Group’s principal trading subsidiary, 
Superglass Insulation, was established 
in 1987 with the commissioning of the only 
glasswool manufacturing facility in Scotland.

The Group was launched on the Main Market 
of the London Stock Exchange in July 2007 and 
is well placed to support delivery of two of the most 
effective and low-cost energy efficiency solutions, 
namely cavity wall and loft insulation.
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our highlights

EBITA after non-recurring items

£6.6m
2008: £9.5m

Adjusted EPS

8.3p
2008: 11.3p

Debt reduced by

£2.4m
Total debt £21.7m

Revenue

£38.1m
2008: £41.1m

FiNANCiAl highlights

Revenue £38.1 million (2008: £41.1 million)

EBITA £6.6 million (2008: £9.5 million)

Business highly cash generative 

A Borrowings reduced by £2.4 million

A Interest cover 6.2 times (2008: 6.3 times)

Adjusted EPS 8.3 pence (2008: 11.3 pence)

Proposed final dividend of 0.5 pence per share, giving 
a total for the year of 1.5 pence (2008: 3.4 pence) 

oPErAtiNg highlights

Creditable performance in challenging circumstances

Alex McLeod appointed as CEO with effect from 
1 November 2009

Board further strengthened with the appointment 
of David Gray as Non-executive Director

Increase in carbon-saving related activity during 
the year, offset in part by the worst downturn 
for decades in new build construction

£1.3 million CERT funding secured to launch 
SUPERDAD scheme in conjunction with Scottish 
and Southern Energy (SSE) to offer discounted 
insulation to DIY customers

Focus on growth in sales to new customers, 
cash management and strict cost control
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OVERVIEW OF THE YEAR
2009 was another challenging year for Superglass. 
Demand remained extremely subdued and 
competition for market share increased accordingly. 
Against this background, Superglass did well 
to achieve an EBITA of £6.6 million. Although 
a marked reduction on the £9.5 million achieved 
in the previous year, the result would have 
been worse without the cost reductions that 
were promptly implemented as the extent 
of the market deterioration became apparent. 
A number of new customer relationships 
were also developed as the year progressed, 
which will bear fruit in the coming year. 

A key initiative during the course of the year 
was the £1.3 million CERT funded SUPERDAD 
scheme, in conjunction with SSE. Funding was 
secured during the year and the scheme was 
launched in September 2009. This was the first 
of this kind of initiative, which took our competitors 
by surprise and opened up an entirely new route 
to market. DIY customers are now able to obtain 
discounted Superglass insulation through the 
independent builders’ merchant sector and 
early indications suggest that the scheme 
is working well.

The Government also showed its continued 
commitment to energy efficiency with the 
extension of the CERT programme to 2012 
and the introduction of the Community Energy 
Saving Programme (CESP). During the year, 
it also made a key change by ending the issue 
of carbon credits to utility companies that issue 
energy-efficient light bulbs by direct mail. It is 
widely believed that the companies will now need 
to increase their insulation initiatives to achieve 
their carbon-saving targets.

ChAirmAN’s stAtEmENt

Assisted by an anticipated reduction 
in input costs, a wider customer-base 
and continuing environmental initiatives, 
we enter the new financial year with 
a strong platform for recovery.
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BOARD CHANGES
On 1 November 2009, Alex McLeod took over 
as Chief Executive Officer, bringing with him 
a wealth of experience in the insulation industry. 
He has already demonstrated a number of fresh 
ideas and enthusiasm to drive Superglass forward. 
Alex’s appointment followed John Smellie’s 
decision to retire, which we announced earlier 
this year. I would like to take this opportunity 
to thank John for his key contribution to the 
business over the last 24 years and wish him 
a long and happy retirement. John will facilitate 
the hand-over to Alex by remaining as a Director 
until 31 December 2009.

During the year we further strengthened the 
Board with the appointment of David Gray 
as a Non-executive Director, whose breadth 
of experience in manufacturing is already 
proving highly valuable, complementing 
the existing areas of expertise on the Board. 

DIVIDENDS
I am pleased to report that the Board of Superglass 
has resolved to pay a final dividend of 0.5 pence 
per share, giving a total of 1.5 pence for the year. 
This reflects market and trading circumstances and 
support for the initiatives outlined in Alex’s statement.

OUTLOOK
Trading conditions are expected to remain 
challenging during 2010. The hard work and 
commitment shown by our staff and workforce 
have however provided us with a much lower 
cost-base from which to move forward. Assisted 
by an anticipated reduction in input costs, a wider 
customer-base and continuing environmental 
initiatives, we enter the new financial year with 
a strong platform for recovery. 

TIm ROSS
ChAirmAN
25 NovEmBER 2009

Funding for the SUPERDAD scheme 
was secured during the year and the 
scheme was launched in September. 
This was the first of this kind of initiative, 
which took our competitors by surprise 
and opened up an entirely new route 
to market.

our sustainable process

The protection of the environment is a key business philosophy at Superglass. As a leading 
manufacturer and supplier of glass mineral fibre insulation the Company recognises our 
responsibility to:

A  Manufacture all products to meet the relevant legislative standards

A  Minimise the use of resources through environmentally responsible packaging systems

A  Promote the use of recycling where possible

A  Improve environmental performance of the processes

A Provide unambiguous environmental information to employees and the environment
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superglass insulation has 
joined forces with ssE in 
a £1 million pound deal to 
make British homes green 
and help keep household 
finances in the black.

The two UK-owned, 
Scottish-based companies 
have moved to provide 
more energy-efficient 
solutions in the consumer 
market. Superglass, based 
in Stirling and SSE, with their 
headquarters in Perth, have 

teamed up to promote 
a SUPERDAD advertising 
campaign to encourage 
homeowners in the DIY 
sector to take the simple 
step of insulating their loft 
in a bid to cut energy waste 
as well as their heating bills. 

BriNgiNg grEEN to homEs
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ProACtivE AgENdA
Superglass continues to pursue 
a proactive business agenda, 
anticipating market developments 
and initiating new schemes, 
such as SUPERDAD which 
enables independent builders’ 
merchants to participate in the 
DIY energy efficiency market.

“This is a great opportunity for our builders’ 
merchant customers to have a route 
to market previously only available to 
the major DIY superstores. The deal 
available in the coming months gives 
all our merchant accounts the chance 
to compete in the lucrative DIY energy 
efficiency market, opening up their 
business to new customers.”
Michael Beard, Sales and Marketing Director 
of Superglass
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Green MSP achieved greatest 
home carbon emission savings 
in year-long charity challenge.

Friends of the Earth Scotland 
announced on Wednesday 
28 January 2009 that Robin 
Harper MSP was the winner 
of their MSP Home Energy 
Challenge. With the help 
of Superglass he achieved 
the greatest home carbon 
reduction during 2008 of all 
five contestants taking part 

in the challenge. The result 
was announced at an awards 
ceremony in the Scottish 
Parliament. The prize, £500 
for the MSP’s chosen charity, 
will go to Childline.

Five MSPs, one from each 
party represented in the 
Scottish Parliament, took up 
the challenge in late 2007 to 
achieve the greatest reduction 
in carbon dioxide emissions 
from their home over a year. 

This could be achieved 
through installing insulation, 
energy efficiency measures 
or micro-renewables such 
as solar panels, with the 
contestants paying for any 
improvements to their homes 
out of their own pockets.

roBiN hArPEr WiNs msP homE ENErgY ChAllENgE
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rECYClEd ProduCt
Superglass products are 
manufactured from waste glass 
and are designed to provide 
excellent thermal, acoustic 
and fire protection properties.

Waste bottles saved from landfill

35,000
tonnes



Our key markets will remain 
challenging during 2010.

CERT targets have been 
increased by 20% and the 
scheme extended to 2012.

Outlook for new build housing, 
repair, maintenance and 
improvement will continue 
to be uncertain.

The recently announced 
CESP scheme and the 
removal of lightbulbs from 
schemes will have a positive 
impact on future demand.

outlooK
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FlExiBlE 
ProduCtioN FACilitY
In 2008 we completed a major 
capital expenditure programme 
on our production plant at Stirling. 
The plant is modern and well 
invested and we have the capacity 
to ramp up production quickly 
as demand recovers.

Carbon dioxide emitted (kg per tonne 
of production)

655
(2008: 614)
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INTRODUCTION
I am pleased to present my first preliminary 
results as Chief Executive Officer of Superglass 
following my appointment to that role on 
1 November 2009. 

The impact of the current unprecedented 
recession continued to make trading conditions 
challenging for Superglass. The Company has 
weathered the downturn well, continuing to 
generate cash and repay debt, through a cost 
reduction programme, the reduction of capital 
expenditure and the development of new 
trading relationships and marketing initiatives. 

As Superglass’ new Chief Executive Officer, 
I am encouraged by the opportunities for growth 
in the Company. My immediate plans are to conduct 
a strategic review of the business. I plan to 
communicate the outcome of my review more 
fully at the interim results announcement next 
year. Some key areas I have already identified 
to progress include sales development and the 
introduction of innovation processes to deliver 
new products and services. Whilst the timing 
of any recovery is not within our control, we are 
in a robust position through the strength of the 
business and the introduction of some immediate 
initiatives to benefit from sales growth from new 
channels and then an upturn as markets recover 
to a more normal pattern. Further efficiency gains 
are possible and may require some modest 
capital investment. 

RESULTS
A Revenue £38.1 million (2008: £41.1 million)

A EBITA £6.6 million (2008: £9.5 million)

A  Adjusted earnings per share of 8.3 pence 
(2008: 11.3 pence)

A Net debt down £2.4 million to £21.7 million

Margins in the first half of the year were reduced 
by lower volumes and higher input costs. Volume 
decline accelerated in the second half and selling 
prices came under greater pressure. Lower input 
costs, however, contributed to a modest increase 
in margins during the second half of the year. 

In response to these circumstances, management 
has been focused on reducing costs in all aspects 
of the business this year, the impact of which will 
flow through to 2009/10. Savings were made on 
waste disposal, raw materials and energy costs. 

BusiNEss rEviEW
Chief Executive Officer’s review

Whilst the timing of any recovery is not 
within our control, we are in a robust position 
through the strength of the business and the 
introduction of some immediate initiatives to 
benefit from sales growth from new channels 
and then an upturn as markets recover 
to a more normal pattern.
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THE mARKET
During the year the insulation market was affected 
by two key factors; the full year effect of increased 
targets arising from the Government sponsored 
CERT programme and the continued decline in 
demand for new build private housing. 

CARBON SAVING
The UK residential carbon savings market is 
driven primarily through long-term regulatory 
requirements imposed by the Government on 
the energy suppliers and electricity generators. 
CERT and the soon to be implemented CESP 
require suppliers and generators to invest 
in energy efficiency improvements in UK 
residential housing stock. The current targets 
require estimated annual expenditure in excess 
of £1 billion. 

The extension of CERT and the announcement 
of CESP is excellent news for Superglass, which 
is well placed to support delivery of two of the 
most effective and low-cost energy efficiency 
solutions, namely cavity wall and loft insulation.

Key changes to CERT and CESP are as follows:

CErt
A  a 20% increase in CERT targets to the end 

of 2012. It is estimated that the average annual 
energy savings from the programme are 
equivalent to the annual emissions of about 
1 million homes; 

A  the inclusion of Home Energy Advice as 
a measure, where experts will be available 
to visit householders and audit domestic 
energy efficiency allowing households to 
make simple, easy steps to reduce energy 
consumption and cut their fuel bills;

A  an estimated 60% of the total funding available 
under the enhanced scheme will go to low-income 
and elderly householders, who will receive 
free or substantially discounted energy saving 
improvements such as insulation; and

A  removal of direct mail-outs of low energy light 
bulbs from 1 January 2010. This will result in 
a switch to other energy efficiency measures 
and insulation is likely to be a key beneficiary 
of this change.

It is hoped that the future changes in targets are 
clarified and the provisions for carry-over from 
CERT to future schemes are resolved quickly and 
certainly before the forthcoming general election.

CEsP
CESP will involve the promotion of partnership 
schemes and bring together local authorities, 
energy suppliers and local communities to deliver 
improvements in energy efficiency. Up to 100 
community schemes are planned benefiting 
around 90,000 homes and delivering savings 
of nearly 2.9 million tonnes of CO2 reduction 
by December 2012. 

The UK Government continues to play a key and 
supportive role in driving demand for insulation 
to address the ever more pressing need to 
meet EU targets for reduced greenhouse gas 
emissions and targets linked to climate change. 
During the year we strengthened our links with 
the Scottish Parliament, discussing energy 
initiatives and building regulations and providing 
advice where appropriate.

HOUSING
The UK housing market remained difficult during 
the financial year. Recovery will be slow and 
start from historically low levels. Private house 
construction is forecast to be at its lowest level 
since 1992 and despite recent more encouraging 
statements from house builders it is acknowledged 
that the risk of rising unemployment and cut backs 
in Government spending may yet have an adverse 
effect on any sustainable recovery. It is also 
suggested that some of the recent increase 
in activity reflects the restrained supply of new 
properties rather than pure demand pressure. 

Additional Government expenditure has been 
promised in the public housing sector and this 
is forecast to recover at a faster rate than the 
private sector, recovering strongly in 2010 
and 2011.

The extension of CERT and the 
announcement of CESP is excellent 
news for Superglass, which is well 
placed to support delivery of two 
of the most effective and low-cost 
energy efficiency solutions, namely 
cavity wall and loft insulation.

strategic review

Superglass has commenced a strategic review of the business and identified key areas 
of focus for the coming months:

A  To broaden Superglass’ appeal to a wider base of customers through:

 A  Development of a sales and marketing team to increase focus on specification selling 
and build market share

 A  Development of new products and solutions

 A  New initiatives to follow on from the SUPERDAD scheme

A Continued focus on efficiency improvement

A  Maintained focus on cash generation to pay down debt
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REPAIR, mAINTENANCE 
AND ImPROVEmENT
The volume of repair and maintenance work, 
historically less volatile than most segments 
of our markets, has held up reasonably well. 
Future trends in this segment are, however, 
sensitive to activity levels in the housing market 
and trends in disposable income. Housing equity 
withdrawal boosted spending for some years 
prior to this recession. This is not expected to 
return in the immediate future.

SALES 
Superglass has restructured to focus more 
heavily on the growing carbon saving market 
following the introduction of CERT. Revenue was 
£38.1 million, down 7.3% on 2008. In the context 
of a reduction in construction of more than 20%, 
the shift in focus has offered some protection.

CoNtrACtors
Superglass made a significant shift into carbon 
saving (CERT) during the year, growing sales by 
26%. Carbon saving related activity represented 
just over 50% of Superglass business in the year, 
up from 38% in 2007/08. 

distriButors ANd BuildErs’ mErChANts
Sales through distributors and merchants declined 
24% during 2008/09. Selling prices were under 
pressure during 2009, but remained broadly flat 
on 2008. 

The decline in house-building activity hit all 
distributors badly resulting in a 32% fall in sales 
in this sector, which has been partly offset by the 
development of new trading relationships, notably 
with the UK’s leading specialist drylining and 
insulation distributor, Sheffield Insulations. 

Superglass has a strong position with independent 
builders’ merchants and this is expected to 
continue during 2010. Sales volumes in difficult 
trading conditions were up 2% on the previous 
year. These relationships have been built up over 
time and are based on our ability to provide 
smaller quantities of insulation and a flexible, 
excellent quality of service. 

BusiNEss rEviEW
Chief Executive Officer’s review continued
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SUPERDAD
Superglass boosted its traditional routes of supply 
through insulation contractors with the introduction 
of a unique energy efficiency scheme to promote 
sales of loft insulation through the independent 
builders’ merchants sector. Funding was secured 
during the year and the scheme was launched 
in September 2009. In the first of its kind for a UK 
manufacturer, Superglass secured £1.3 million 
of funding from SSE to support the SUPERDAD 
scheme aimed at offering DIY customers 
discounted Superglass insulation through the 
builders’ merchant sector. In return for funding 
the scheme SSE receive carbon credits.

The scheme has generated significant interest 
among existing and potential Superglass 
customers. It provides an excellent opportunity 
for all our builders’ merchant customers to 
participate in the DIY energy efficiency market 
opening up their business to new customers 
and helping them to make a real contribution 
to the UK’s ambitious zero carbon objectives 
in domestic dwellings. Early indications are 
very encouraging with participating branches 
increasing sales of insulation, from an initial 
low level. We are confident about the success 
of this initiative and believe that this scheme 
could be the first of many such initiatives.

OPERATIONS
Superglass prepared well for the current 
downturn by taking the following key actions:

A  capacity reduction – manned capacity has been 
reduced through reductions in overtime levels 
and termination of temporary labour contracts;

A  cost control – a cost reduction programme 
has delivered cost savings of £0.5 million 
through efficiency savings; and

A  capital spending reduction – only essential 
capital spending has been carried out focused 
mainly on safety related issues. 

With two production lines and a highly experienced 
workforce, Superglass has established a reputation 
for flexibility and excellent customer service levels. 
When the market improves, the flexibility of our 
operations will allow fast and low-cost capacity 
expansion when required.

ENVIRONmENT
Respect for the environment is a key value of 
Superglass and we work closely with the Scottish 
Environmental Protection Agency to ensure that 
the highest standards are maintained.

Waste glass bottles are the main raw material 
in the manufacture of our glasswool insulation 
and during the year we moved to 100% use 
of glass bottles, up from approximately 80%, 
which reduced our input costs. We estimate 
that some 35,000 tonnes of waste glass which 
would otherwise be sent to landfill is used in the 
manufacture of our products. The percentage 
of waste glass usage is one of the highest in 
the industry. 

We also recycle waste glasswool as much 
as possible and less than 2% is sent to landfill. 
Our target is to reduce this to zero by the end 
of 2011. All process water is cleaned and 
recycled and rainwater is collected from the 
roof and used in our production processes. 

OUTLOOK
Our key markets will remain challenging during 
2010. Lack of clarity surrounding the extension 
of CERT related targets to 2012 is making 
it difficult to predict short-term demand and 
current volumes are lower than expected. 
The recently announced CESP scheme and 
the removal of lightbulbs from schemes will, 
however, have a positive impact on future 
demand. Outlook for new build housing, repair, 
maintenance and improvement will continue 
to be uncertain. This current financial year 
will be impacted positively by a reduction 
in input costs, in particular energy costs. I have 
commenced a strategic review of the business 
aimed at broadening Superglass’ offering to a 
wider base of customers, efficiency improvement 
and maintaining our focus on cash generation 
and will report at the 2009/10 interim results 
more of my plans.

ALEx mcLEOD
ChiEF ExECutivE oFFiCEr
25 NovEmBER 2009

With two production lines and a highly 
experienced workforce, Superglass has 
established a reputation for flexibility and 
excellent customer service levels. When 
the market improves, the flexibility of our 
operations will allow fast and low-cost 
capacity expansion when required.
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SALES
Total sales in the year fell by 7.3% to £38.1 million. 
Improvements in CERT related sales and sales 
to builders’ merchants did not offset reductions 
in specialist distribution and Eire, both of which 
have seen declining volumes arising from 
construction activity. Demand in Central Europe 
was similarly affected with volumes down on 
historic levels. 

OPERATING PROFIT
EBITA fell from £9.5 million in the period ended 
31 August 2008 to £6.6 million. Operating profit 
margins before amortisation reduced from 23% 
to 17.2% with increased energy costs accounting 
for almost 60% of the reduction; the contracts 
resulting in these raised costs have now expired. 
Reduced volumes adversely affected operational 
gearing, especially during the second half. Other 
cost reduction measures helped to partially 
offset these. 

TAxATION
The effective tax charge for the Group is 30% 
(2008: 28%). The rate is higher than the standard 
rate of taxation of 28% due to disallowable 
expenditure incurred by the Group. 

DIVIDENDS
The proposed final ordinary dividend of 0.5 pence 
per share (2008: 1.7 pence) is to be paid on 
12 February 2010 to shareholders on the register 
at the close of business on 8 January 2010. 
This will result in a full year dividend of 1.5 pence 
(2008: 3.4 pence). In deciding the level of future 
dividend payments the Directors will take account 
of the profitability, cash generation and underlying 
growth of the business while seeking to maintain 
an appropriate level of dividend cover. 

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Adjusted earnings per share (excluding 
amortisation of intangible assets) were 8.3 pence 
(2008: 11.3 pence). Basic earnings per share 
amounted to 0.8 pence (2008: 3.7 pence). 

BusiNEss rEviEW
Finance Director’s review

Strong cash generation and management 
have ensured that the Group has 
comfortably remained within banking 
covenants, whilst paying down debt 
according to plan and paying dividends.
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CASH AND BORROWINGS
The Group continues to reduce debt. 
Net borrowings at 31 August 2009 were 
£21.7 million (2008: £24.1 million). Net cash 
generated from operating activities was 
£4.9 million (2008: £6.9 million), despite reduced 
operating profit. There has been considerable 
focus during the year on reducing stock levels 
and maintaining debtor collection. Capital 
expenditure was restricted to £0.7 million 
and primarily directed towards safety and 
cost reduction projects. There were other 
cash outflows of £3.3 million on term loan 
repayments and £1.6 million in dividends. 
The Group continued to comfortably meet both 
its interest cover and debt financing covenants.

£5 million of the debt is repayable in May 2014. 
The balance is repayable in equal quarterly 
instalments expiring in July 2014. 

TREASURY AND FINANCIAL 
RISK mANAGEmENT
The Group aims to reduce financial risks 
wherever possible and ensure that it has 
sufficient liquidity to meet all foreseeable needs. 
Forward currency contracts in US Dollars are 
used to hedge foreign currency purchases of 
manufacturing consumables with the objective 
of minimising the effect of fluctuations in exchange 
rates on future transactions and cash flows.

To the extent that Group income denominated 
in Euros cannot be offset against raw material 
purchases, forward currency contracts in Euros 
are used. Separate bank accounts are held 
for all currencies in which trade is conducted, 
in order to facilitate the collection of debts and 
the management of currency positions.

The Group has entered an interest rate cap with 
its bankers, Clydesdale Bank, where the interest 
costs on borrowings of £7.5 million are capped 
at 5.5% for the year ending 31 August 2010.

As part of the overall service package, Superglass 
provides credit to customers and as a result 
there is an associated risk that the customer 
may not be able to pay outstanding balances. 
Superglass has developed proven credit control 
procedures, which, together with cover provided 
by its credit insurer, minimise credit risk. For the 
year ended 31 August 2009 the bad debt expense 
amounted to 0.1% of sales (2008: nil), the majority 
of this was covered by insurance. During 2009 
the availability of credit insurance from commercial 
insurers has been tightening and cover reduced, 
leading to enforcement of established credit 
procedures which could affect the trading 
relationships with some customers.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Company has only one class of share capital. 
The ordinary shares carry no right to fixed income, 
but holders are entitled to receive dividends 
as declared from time to time and are entitled to 
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. 
All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s 
residual assets and there are no restrictions on 
the transfer of the Company’s shares. During 
the period the Company complied fully with the 
requirements that apply to the Company’s shares 
as a consequence of these shares being listed 
on the London Stock Exchange.

 
Financial KPIs  2009  2008

Organic sales growth  (7.3%) (6.6%)
Operating profit margin   5.7%   12.3%
Return on capital employed  
(profit after tax: net assets)  14.8%  53.0%
Underlying earnings per share   8.3p  11.3p

operations

Superglass prepared well for the current downturn by taking the following key actions:

AA Capacity reduction – manned capacity has been reduced by 25% through reductions 
in overtime levels and termination of temporary labour contracts

AA Cost control – an ambitious cost reduction programme has delivered cost savings 
of £0.5 million through efficiency savings

AA Capital spending minimised – only essential capital spending has been carried out, 
focused mainly on safety related issues

Organic sales (decline)/growth

 (7.30)%
2008: (6.6)%

Operating profit margin

5.7%
2008: 12.3%
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OPERATIONAL RISKS 
AND UNCERTAINTIES
There are a number of potential risks and 
uncertainties which could have an impact 
on the Group’s performance, but are beyond 
its control. The Group closely monitors market 
trends and risks on an ongoing basis and these 
are the focus of monthly management meetings 
where performance is measured against budget, 
forecast and prior year.

The key non-financial risks and uncertainties 
facing the Group are as follows:

ECoNomiC CoNditioNs
The Group’s products are sold into both the 
residential and commercial construction sectors. 
As a result it is exposed to movements in demand, 
which may arise from changes in Government 
policy and expenditure plans, general economic 
climate and individual business and consumer 
confidence. Over the past twelve months the 
Group has experienced weaker demand in these 
markets, which has had an impact on the results 
for the current year. Action has been taken to 
reduce manned production capacity to align with 
demand. Further action would be considered 
if volumes fell further.

iNPut PriCEs
The Group’s operating performance is impacted 
by the pricing and availability of its key inputs 
which include energy, recycled glass, resin, borax 
and polythene packaging, some of which are 
themselves subject to volatile input cost influences. 
The Group looks to minimise the adverse effects 
of such movements in materials through strong 
long-term relationships with suppliers, forward 
purchasing, inventory management and multiple 
suppliers. The Group engages power consultants 
to assist in formulating a power purchasing strategy 
in order to minimise the effects of volatility. Flexible 
supply contracts have allowed the Group to forward 
purchase a major element of its power requirements 
for up to 24 months ahead. 

ComPEtitors
The Group operates within a competitive 
environment and there is a risk to its results 
and financial performance by the actions of its 
competitors, including competitors’ marketing 
strategies and product development. In recent 
months, competitive pressure has intensified 
due to contraction in the overall market size. 
This has led in some cases to lower margins. 
The Group looks to counter any such actions 
by ensuring a low-cost manufacturing base, 
industry-leading customer service and flexibility 
and working closely with customers on innovative 
sales schemes such as SUPERDAD.

BusiNEss rEviEW
Finance Director’s review continued

The results were in line with market 
expectations, achieved in challenging 
circumstances. Actions taken to reduce 
the cost base leave the Group well placed 
to gain from improved operational gearing, 
input cost improvements and broadening 
of the customer base.
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)
The Group is reliant upon IT systems for operational 
and financial control, a lengthy failure or disruption 
could affect day to day operations. Dedicated IT 
support staff are employed together with external 
support services to monitor the IT systems and 
a robust continuity plan has been developed.

trANsPort ANd FuEl PriCEs
As all the Group’s sales are delivered to 
customers, prolonged disruption of road 
transport systems or availability of vehicle 
fuel would result in reduced sales over the 
period covered. Additionally, a significant 
increase in vehicle fuel can affect profitability. 

CustomEr CoNCENtrAtioN
The reduction of sales into residential and 
commercial new build resulted in a greater 
proportion of sales being made into the residential 
carbon saving sector. Cavity blowing wool makes 
up 60% of the volume into this market and it must 
be supplied via an accredited system designer. 
The latter is responsible for providing an approved 
installation system to licensed installers and ensuring 
compliance with the system. As Superglass sell 
all their cavity blowing wool in the UK to a single 
customer under a solus agreement, there is a 
risk of over-reliance upon this customer. This risk 
is mitigated via a rolling two-year notice period 
and a long relationship with the customer dating 
back to 1991. In order to reduce customer 
concentration, the management has grown 
the customer base and continues to seek sales 
growth in other areas and with schemes such 
as SUPERDAD and diversification within the 
residential carbon saving market. 

TONY KIRKBRIGHT
FiNANCE dirECtor
25 NovEmBER 2009

Management has grown the customer 
base and continues to seek sales growth 
in other areas and with schemes such 
as SUPERDAD, diversification within 
the residential carbon-saving market.

Return on capital employed

 14.8%
2008: 53.0%

Underlying earnings per share

8.3p
2008: 11.3p

EBITA return on sales

 17.3%
2008: 23.1%
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dirECtors ANd AdvisErs

TIm ROSS
NoN-ExECutivE ChAirmAN 
Tim read law at Oxford University and qualified 
as a solicitor, working in the City of London 
and as a company legal adviser, before 
attending London Business School and moving 
into general management. He has considerable 
experience of the construction industry and 
related sectors. He was a main board director 
of George Wimpey PLC from 1991 to 1996 and 
is currently chairman of Hargreaves Services plc, 
deputy chairman of Connaught plc and a 
non-executive director of May Gurney Integrated 
Services plc and Lavendon Group plc, in addition 
to board positions with a number of private 
or venture capital-backed companies. He is 
a Trustee of the Quartet Community Foundation 
and a member of the Governing Councils of 
Clifton College and the University of Bristol.

ALEx mcLEOD
ChiEF ExECutivE oFFiCEr
Alex joined Superglass on 1 October 2009, 
becoming Chief Executive Officer on 
1 November 2009. He has spent the 
majority of his career with BPB plc, now 
part of Saint Gobain, the world leader in 
the supply of plasterboard and gypsum 
plasters and a major supplier of insulation, 
ceiling tiles and related products.

Originally qualifying as an accountant and 
holding a number of senior financial positions 
with BPB, he subsequently moved into general 
management. Until recently he was managing 
director of St Gobain’s glasswool manufacturing 
operation in Cheshire, one of only two manufacturing 
competitors of Superglass in the UK. Over a 
five-year period he led that business to record 
levels of profitability and return on investment.

TONY KIRKBRIGHT
FiNANCE dirECtor 
Tony joined Encon in 1986 as group accountant, 
from the Celcon Group plc based in Leeds where 
he was a cost accountant of a division of that 
company. On joining Encon, after a period as 
group financial controller, he took responsibility 
for implementing the financial and commercial 
systems required for Superglass Insulation to 
operate as a stand alone entity when it was 
formed in 1987.

He was appointed as Finance Director of 
Superglass Insulation in September 1990 and 
Encon manufacturing divisional finance director 
in September 1993. He has been involved in all 
aspects of the management of the business, 
working closely with John Smellie through the 
management buy-out in 2005 and subsequent 
flotation in 2007. Tony is a qualified accountant.
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32 Castle Street 
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Northern House 
Woodsome Park 
Fenay Bridge 
Huddersfield 
West Yorkshire HD8 0LA

DAVID SHEARER
sENior NoN-ExECutivE dirECtor 
David, a qualified chartered accountant, 
is an experienced corporate financier, board 
level strategic adviser and business manager 
with both UK and international experience. 
Prior to 2004 he held senior positions with 
Deloitte & Touche where he was latterly a 
senior partner and UK executive board 
member of the firm.

He recently stood down as chairman of 
housebuilder Crest Nicholson plc following 
the successful £1.2 billion debt reconstruction 
of that company. He is deputy chairman of 
Aberdeen New Dawn Investment Trust plc, 
senior independent director of STV Group plc 
and Renold plc, a non-executive director of 
Mithras Investment Trust plc, Martin Currie 
Holdings Ltd and Scottish Financial Enterprise 
and a governor of The Glasgow School of Art. 
He was until early 2007 a non-executive director 
of HBOS plc.

JOHN SmELLIE
John joined Cape Insulation in 1973 after a brief 
spell with Collins (Publishers), Glasgow where 
he was the works chemist. He worked with 
Cape Insulation until the end of 1984 having 
held various positions within the organisation 
from works chemist to works manager. After 
leaving Cape Insulation, he joined Encon Insulation 
Limited in 1985 as the managing director of 
their manufacturing operation, Enconvertors. 
In this role he was instrumental in Encon 
identifying and establishing Superglass 
as a manufacturing operation.

In 1987 he was appointed as General Manager 
of Superglass Insulation and in 1990 was made 
Managing Director. He led a team of Directors 
of Superglass Insulation that completed the 
management buy-out of the business from 
Encon in August 2005. He has a BSc in Applied 
Chemistry and a CEng in Fuel Technology. John 
was Chief Executive Officer until 31 October 2009 
and after 24 years’ service will retire from the 
Board on 31 December 2009, but will continue to 
technically advise the Company on an ad hoc basis.

DAVID GRAY
NoN-ExECutivE dirECtor 
David joined the Board in July 2009. Previously 
a partner with KMG Thomson McLintock (now 
KPMG), he spent six years as managing director 
of Caledonian Paper plc, was finance director 
at Scottish Hydro Electric plc and business 
development director at SSE. More recently, he 
was an executive director at DTZ Holdings plc. 
His current directorships include Scottish 
Water and Romag Holdings plc and he 
was previously a non-executive director at 
F&C Asset Management plc. He is a member 
of Court at the University of Strathclyde.
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The Directors submit their report and the audited accounts of the Group and the Company for the year ended 31 August 2009.

PrinciPal activities and business review
The principle activity of the Group is the manufacture of glassfibre insulation. The Chief Executive’s Review on pages 10 to 13 and the Financial Review 
on pages 14 to 17 contain a review of these activities, an analysis of key performance indicators, description of the market in which the Group operates 
and an analysis of the key risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

results and dividends
The profit before tax was £0.6 million (2008: £3.0 million). The Directors are recommending the payment of a final dividend of 0.5 pence (2008: 1.7 pence) 
per ordinary share to be paid on 12 February 2010 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 8 January 2010 which, together with the 
interim dividend of 1.0 pence per ordinary share (2008: 1.7 pence) paid on 17 July 2009, results in a total dividend for the year of 1.5 pence per ordinary 
share (2008: 3.4 pence per ordinary share). The Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 August 2009 is shown on page 33.

Financial instruments
The Group’s risk management objectives and policy are discussed in the Treasury and Financial Risk Management section of the Financial Review 
on pages 14 to 17.

directors and their interests
The Directors of the Company currently in office are as stated in the Board of Directors on pages 18 and 19. It was announced on 17 July 2009 that 
Alex McLeod had been appointed as Chief Executive with effect from 1 November 2009, to replace John Smellie who had indicated his intention to 
take early retirement from 31 December 2009. David Gray joined the Board on 17 July 2009 as a Non-executive Director. All other Directors served 
for the whole year under review.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles, one third (or nearest whole number below one-third) of the Directors are required to retire at each 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and each Director must submit themselves for re-election at least every three years, together with Directors appointed 
by the Board since the date of any notice convening the previous AGM. At the 2010 AGM, Alex McLeod and David Gray, having been appointed 
since the publication of the notice for the last AGM, will retire from the Board and, being eligible, offer themselves for election. David Shearer will 
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The interests of the Directors, as defined by the Companies Act 2006, in the ordinary shares of the Company are as follows:

          At  
         At  appointment 
         31 August or 31 August  
Ordinary shares         2009 2008

Tim Ross         133,889 13,889
David Shearer         27,777 27,777
David Gray         25,000 —
John Smellie          5,080,240 5,080,240
Tony Kirkbright         2,437,574 2,437,574

directors’ indemnities
The Directors have the benefit of qualifying third party indemnity provisions contained in the Company’s Articles of Association, which were in force 
throughout the year and remain in force as at the date of signing these financial statements.

share caPital
The Company has a single class of share which is divided into ordinary shares of 1.0 pence each.

rights attaching to shares
The rights attaching to the ordinary shares are defined in the Company’s Articles of Association. The Articles of Association may be changed with 
the agreement of shareholders. 

Subject to any restrictions below, shareholders, if ordinary shareholders, may attend any general meeting of the Company and, on a show of hands, 
every shareholder (or his representative) who is present at a general meeting has one vote on each resolution.

Shareholders have the right to dividends approved in general meeting and approved by the Board and can declare final dividends by passing an 
ordinary resolution but the amount of the dividends cannot exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board can pay interim dividends 
on any class of shares of the amounts and on the dates and for the periods they decide, provided the distributable profits of the Company justify 
such payment. The Board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders, offer any shareholder the right to elect to receive new 
ordinary shares, which will be credited as fully paid, instead of their cash dividend.

Directors’ report
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rights attaching to shares continued
If the Company is wound up, the liquidator can, with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed by the shareholders, divide among the shareholders 
all or any part of the assets of the Company and he can value any assets and determine how the division shall be carried out as between the members 
or different classes of members. No shareholders can be compelled to accept any asset which would give them a liability.

The Company can issue new shares and attach any rights to them. If there is no restriction by special rights attaching to existing shares, rights attaching 
to new shares can take priority over the rights of existing shares, or the new shares and the existing shares are deemed to be varied (unless the rights 
expressly allow it) by a reduction of paid up capital or if another share of that same class is issued and ranks in priority for payment of dividend or in 
respect of capital or more favourable voting rights.

agreements with emPloyees and signiFicant agreements
There are no agreements between the Company and its Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss of office or employment 
(whether through resignation, purported redundancy or otherwise) that occurs because of a takeover bid.

The Company’s banking arrangements are terminable upon change of control of the Company. In the event of a change in ownership, assignment 
of the Company’s technology agreement with Glass Incorporated International specifically requires any new controlling entity to enter into an agreement 
on similar terms to the existing agreement. 

major shareholders
As at 25 November 2009 the following had notified the Company of an interest of 3% or more in the Company’s issued ordinary share capital:

  
          Percentage  
          of issue 
         Number of ordinary  
         ordinary shares 
         shares %

BlackRock Advisors LLP (Institutional)        8,181,502 14.1
J Smellie and connected persons         5,080,240 8.8
Schroder Investment Management         3,332,935 5.8
Montanaro Asset Management Ltd         2,898,408 5.0
Brewin Dolphin Securities (Broker)         2,452,142 4.2
M G Beard and connected persons         2,437,574 4.2
D Carins and connected persons         2,437,574 4.2
A Kirkbright and connected persons         2,437,574 4.2
B N C Maver and connected persons        2,363,574 4.1
R W Paterson and connected persons        2,357,574 4.1
Hansa Trust PLC         2,347,222 4.1
Aviva (Morley)         2,153,784 3.7
Ennismore Fund Management         2,034,318 3.5
Universities Superannuation Scheme Ltd        1,916,111 3.3
Legal & General         1,751,808 3.0

Power to allot shares and authority For the comPany to Purchase its own shares
The Directors propose to renew the general authority of the Company to make market purchases of its own shares to a total of 8,750,000 ordinary 
shares (representing approximately 15% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company) and within the price constraints set out in the special 
resolution to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

emPloyment
The Company’s policy on employee involvement is to adopt an open management style, thereby encouraging informal consultation at all levels about 
aspects of the Company’s operations. Employees participate directly in the success of the business through participation in the Save As You Earn (SAYE) 
share option schemes.

Employment policies are designed to provide equal opportunities irrespective of colour, ethnic or natural origin, nationality, sex, religion, age, marital 
or disabled status.

Payment to suPPliers
It is the Company’s policy to make payment to suppliers on our standard supplier terms unless alternative terms are agreed. The Company seeks 
to abide by these payment terms whenever it is satisfied that the supplier has provided the goods or services in accordance with the agreed terms 
and conditions.

The number of days purchases outstanding for the Group at 31 August 2009 was 74 days (2008: 76 days). The number of days outstanding for 
the Company was nil (2008: nil). 

Superglass Holdings Plc annual report and accounts 2009
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disclosure oF inFormation to auditors
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they were each aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make 
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

auditors
In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company 
is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

annual general meeting
The notice convening the AGM, which will be held at Stirling Management Centre on 15 January 2010 at 10.00am, is to be sent to shareholders 
separately with this report, together with the explanation of any items of special business.

tony KirKbright
FinAnce Director
25 november 2009

Directors’ report CoNTINUED
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Directors’ remunerAtion report

The remuneration policy is set by the Board and is described below. Individual remuneration packages for Executive Directors and Senior Executives 
are determined by the Remuneration Committee, consisting of David Gray (Chairman) and David Shearer within the framework of this policy and 
approved by the Board.

The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors is determined by the Executive Directors and approved by the Board.

general Policy
Executive Directors’ remuneration packages have remained unchanged since the Company was admitted to the London Stock Exchange on 12 July 2007.

The main elements of their remuneration package are:

A basic salary;

A profit related bonus;

A pension contribution; and

A benefits.

During the course of the current financial year the Remuneration Committee sought to review the benefit packages to ensure that they align the interests 
of shareholders, Directors and Senior Executives and attract, retain and motivate high calibre individuals, rewarding the Executive Directors fairly for 
their contributions, whilst remaining within the range of benefits offered by similar companies. Recommendations were received from independent 
remuneration consultants and the Board has proposed the introduction of a Performance Share Plan, details of which are included in the notice for 
the forthcoming AGM.

bonus scheme
The bonus scheme that has been in operation is based on the achievement of Group EBITDA targets. Bonus payments commence at 95% of budgeted 
EBITDA and increase as EBITDA increases up to a maximum payment of 60% of basic salary for each Director. The targets and percentage bonuses 
are currently the same for all Executive Directors and Senior Managers. Non-executive Directors do not participate in the Company bonus scheme.

Pensions
The Executive Directors are members of the Company’s Group Personal Pension Plan, a defined contribution scheme under which the Company 
makes an annual contribution of 15% of basic annual salary. This may be supplemented by each member as desired and as permitted under current 
pension legislation. Annual bonuses, where they are awarded, are not pensionable. The Company contribution includes the premium payable for 
death-in-service insurance, the benefits of which accrue to the Executive Directors’ dependants.

service contracts
The Company’s policy on the duration of Directors’ contracts is that:

A Executive Directors should have rolling service contracts terminable on no more than six months’ notice served by the Company or the Director; and

A  Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of one year renewable on the agreement of both the Company and the Director, terminable 
by either side on service of six months’ notice.

directors’ service
         Date of  Notice 
         contract period

non-executive  
Tim Ross*        26 February 2007 Six months
David Shearer        26 February 2007 Six months
David Gray        17 July 2009 Six months

executive  
Alex McLeod        1 october 2009 Six months
John Smellie        16 August 2005 Six months
Tony Kirkbright        16 August 2005 Six months

* The services of Tim Ross are provided by Crosswater Resources Limited.
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PerFormance graPh
The graph below shows a comparison of the total shareholder return performance for the Company’s shares for the period since admission 
to the London Stock Exchange to 31 August 2009 against the FTSE All Share Index and the Construction and Materials Index. These indices 
were considered to be the most appropriate for the Company’s market capitalisation and industry sector.

directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the Directors for the year was as follows:

         2009 2008 
     Salary Bonus Benefits1 Pension3 total Total 
     £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

executive Directors      
John Smellie     129 — 1 6 136 158
Tony Kirkbright     89 — 1 4 94 112

non-executive Directors      
Tim Ross     50 — —  — 50 50
David Shearer     35 — — — 35 35
David Gray2     4 — —  — 4 —

     307 — 2 10 319 355
1 Benefits principally comprise provision of private healthcare insurance.

2 From date of appointment on 17 July 2009.

3 Pension contributions represent defined contribution payments. 

directors’ share incentives
The Directors do not currently participate in share-based incentive plans. 

The Directors’ beneficial interests in shareholdings in the Company are shown on page 20 

aPProval by shareholders
At the AGM of the Company to be held on 15 January 2010, a resolution approving this report is to be proposed as an ordinary resolution.

This report was approved by the Board on 25 November 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

david gray
chAirmAn remunerAtion committee
25 november 2009

Directors’ remunerAtion report CoNTINUED
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corporAte sociAl responsibility

overview
Superglass recognises the importance of its social and corporate responsibilities throughout all aspects of the business. The Company has a long 
record of satisfying all aspects of environmental requirements and responsibilities while ensuring that its products and processes deliver environmental 
solutions to meet the needs of its customers.

This statement provides a summary of the key policies Superglass adopts in respect of ethical conduct, relationships with employees, health and safety 
and protecting the environment.

This statement focuses on the following key areas:

A human resources;

A ethical code of conduct;

A health and safety;

A the environment; and

A product life cycle.

human resources
our employees are one of our key assets and are fundamental to the future success and growth of Superglass. In all respects we aim to act as a responsible 
employer and treat our employees in a fair and sympathetic manner, recognising them as individuals with their own issues and concerns.

We are an equal opportunities employer and are committed to providing employment regardless of sex, marital status, race, religion, disability or age.

We want the best from our employees and are as a result committed to providing regular training tailored to their individual needs.

Should an employee become disabled while employed, the Company will make every effort to offer them continued employment whether in the current 
role or in a modified role to suit their individual needs. If necessary, re-training will be provided.

Employees are actively encouraged to become shareholders in Superglass by way of the SAYE share option scheme.

ethical code oF conduct
The Company is committed to ensuring the highest standards in its management of the business and employees follow a strict ethical code of conduct:

A each employee is charged with applying best endeavours and integrity to promote the interests of the Company;

A involvement in activities which could be construed as being competitive to the Company is forbidden;

A confidentiality of information regarding any aspect of the business is strictly maintained;

A all work is carried out in line with current legislation and standards; and

A discriminated action against employees, customers and suppliers is not tolerated.

health and saFety
Superglass employees continue to be central to the development of the business and strive to reach the highest standards in all aspects of employment 
and health and safety policy.

Superglass adheres to a very stringent health and safety policy.

The Company firmly believes that the prevention of accidents, including personal injury is essential to the successful operation of the business 
and the health and safety of its employees is paramount.

The Superglass Directors are aware and accept their collective responsibilities to:

A provide health and safety leadership;

A ensure that all business decisions reflect their health and safety intentions;

A provide a working environment that is safe with the lowest possible risk to health; and

A provide appropriate instruction and training to enable all employees to contribute to their own health and safety at work.
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environment
The protection of the environment is a key business philosophy at Superglass. As a leading manufacturer and supplier of glass mineral fibre insulation 
the Company recognises its responsibility to:

A manufacture all products to meet the relevant legislative standards;

A minimise the use of resources through environmentally responsible packaging systems;

A promote the use of recycling where possible;

A improve environmental performance of the processes; and

A provide unambiguous environmental information to employees and the environment.

Superglass has the ISo9001 certification covering quality management system and has the ability to “CE” mark all products to accommodate 
export sales. 

Product liFe cycle
When considering the life cycle of mineral wool products the various applicable parameters are as follows:

A recycled material used resulting in reduced landfill;

A aqueous waste recycled, minimise volume to sewer;

A fibre waste recycled to avoid landfill;

A liquid oxygen substituted for air in firing of furnace; and

A compression packing of products resulting in reduced use of primary fuel for delivery.

The above ensures that more energy is saved than was required to manufacture the products.

These considerations make glass mineral fibre one of the most environmentally friendly insulations available.

recycling
Recycling takes place in various forms and at certain points within the process.

rAw mAteriAl
Prior to making fibres, glass of a specific formulation must be prepared in the furnace. Superglass has researched and tested a range of glass compositions 
that maximises the volume of glass cullet from broken bottles. The cullet is collected by experienced glass recyclers and crushed before being delivered 
to Superglass. The volume of cullet used over the years has consistently increased and this year has risen to over 80% of the current batch. This ensures 
that annually there is approximately 35,000 tonnes less going to landfill.

process wAste – Fibre
During the manufacture of the product some fibrous waste is produced which is recycled and used to make other products, with only a small quantity 
going to landfill.

Aqueous wAste
All the aqueous waste produced is recycled and returned to the process.

energy
Energy in the form of waste gases from the furnace is recycled to smaller energy using units to minimise energy used.

melting process
The furnaces are fired with a mix of liquid oxygen and gas. The resulting waste gases minimise the nitrogen oxides reaching the atmosphere. 
To further improve the emissions the WESP (Wet Electrostatic Precipitator) has recently been increased in capacity by 15%.

pAckAging
Transport is considered to be an important CO2 emission creator. All products are now considerably compressed for deliveries and increasing 
the volume per vehicle minimises the CO2 produced.

corporAte sociAl responsibility CoNTINUED
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Superglass is committed to the highest standards of business integrity and corporate governance and has ensured compliance with the Combined 
Code on Corporate Governance (June 2006) (“combined code”) and, where the provisions have not been complied with, has provided an explanation.

The paragraphs below, together with the Directors’ Remuneration Report set out on pages 23 and 24 describe how these principles are applied within 
the Company.

The Group has in place appropriate insurance cover for Board members, in respect of any legal action taken against them.

directors and their indePendence
The combined code recommends that the board of directors of a UK public company should include a balance of executive and non-executive 
directors (and in particular independent non-executive directors), such that no individual or small group of individuals can dominate the board’s 
decision taking. 

The Company did not comply with all of these recommendations for all of the year, up until July 2009, since the Board comprised three Directors 
(excluding the Chairman) of whom only David Shearer was a Non-executive Director considered by the Board to be independent. The Directors 
acknowledged this non-compliance and appointed a further Non-executive Director, David Gray, who is considered to be independent.

The Directors have been made aware of the combined code recommendation that, where they have concerns that cannot be resolved about the 
running of the Company or a proposed action, they should ensure that their concerns are recorded in the Board minutes. Non-executive Directors 
have also been made aware of the recommendation that, on resignation, they should provide a written statement to the Chairman, for circulation 
to the Board, if they have any such concerns.

PerFormance evaluation
The combined code attaches importance to boards having processes for individual and collective performance evaluation. The Directors have 
accordingly reviewed and updated existing processes for evaluating the Board’s operation and performance, including its Committees. For individual 
performance evaluation, the Remuneration Committee assesses Executive Directors against annual performance targets. The Chairman meets with 
the Non-executive Directors at least annually to review their performance and the Senior Independent Director leads an evaluation process of the 
performance of the Chairman taking account of the views of the Executives.

Where a Non-executive Director stands for re-election, the Chairman will confirm to shareholders whether he is satisfied from formal performance 
evaluations that the person’s performance continues to be effective and demonstrates commitment to the role.

conFlicts oF interest
Following implementation of the new rules on Directors’ conflicts of interest in the Companies Act 2006, the Board undertook a review of its arrangements 
for dealing with conflicts to formalise the procedures for any actual or potential conflict situations under the new regime and for exercising the Board’s 
power, which was approved by shareholders at the last AGM, to authorise such conflicts.

The procedures that have been adopted by the Board require prompt notification by Directors of any possible conflict situation and the scrutiny initially 
of the Nominations Committee and then the Board before any decision to authorise or not is taken. The Board may approve a conflict situation unconditionally, 
give approval subject to conditions or decide not to approve and require that the Director concerned resolve the circumstances giving rise to the 
conflict. Any approval will be reviewed regularly and may be amended or withdrawn by the Board at any time. only Directors who have no interest in the 
matter being considered are able to take the relevant decisions and at all times the Directors making such decisions must act in a way they consider, 
in good faith, will be most likely to promote the Group’s success. The Board is satisfied that these procedures are operating effectively and will keep 
them under review in light of emerging best practice in this area.

the board
The Board has regular meetings throughout the year.

In advance of all Board meetings the Directors are supplied in a timely manner with detailed comprehensive papers covering the Group’s operations, 
in order to help them to discharge their responsibilities. An annual budget and business plan is prepared, this is then compared in detail with the 
monthly management accounts and Executive Directors discuss and explain areas where performance departs from current expectations. All significant 
variances are discussed at Board level and appropriate action taken.

The formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board includes approval of the Group’s annual business plan; the Group’s strategy; acquisitions, 
disposals and capital expenditure projects above certain thresholds; treasury policies; dividend policy; transactions involving the issue or purchase 
of Company shares; borrowing powers; appointments to the Board; risk management; the scope of delegations to the Board and Executive 
management of the Group.

corporAte governAnce
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the board continued
The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive are held by separate individuals. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the leadership and effective 
working of the Board and ensuring that each Director, particularly the Non-executive Directors, are able to make an effective contribution. He ensures 
that there is a constructive relationship between the Executive and Non-executive Directors. The Chief Executive has responsibility for all operational 
matters which include the implementation of Group strategy and policies approved by the Board. Directors can obtain independent professional advice 
at the Company’s expense in performance of their duties as Directors. In addition, the Non-executive Directors have access to senior management of 
the business either by telephone or via involvement at informal meetings. The Chairman meets with the Non-executive Directors without the Executives 
being present as required.

The Directors are given access to independent professional advice, at the Group’s expense, when the Directors deem it necessary in order for them 
to carry out their responsibilities. No such advice was sought in the year.

The Board considers the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors who served during the year to be independent in character and judgment.

proFessionAl Development
on joining the Board, Directors are provided with documentation on the Company and its activities. An induction programme and full site visit are 
arranged. Throughout their period in office the Directors are continually updated on the Group’s business, the competitive and regulatory environment 
and the industry it operates in. Board meetings are regularly held at the operational site and tours are arranged to ensure that the Board is kept up to 
date with the latest operational developments.

Directors’ biographies are shown on pages 18 to 19. The formal terms of reference for the main Board committees together with the terms and conditions 
of appointment of Non-executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office and at the AGM.

attendance at board meeting and committee meetings
       Board Audit Remuneration Nomination

Number of meetings held       9 2 2 1

executive Directors    
John Smellie       9 2 — —
Tony Kirkbright       9  2 — —
non-executive Directors    
Tim Ross       9  2 2  1
David Shearer       9  2 2  1
David Gray (from date of appointment)      2 — — —

committees oF the board
AuDit committee
The Group employs rigorous procedures to ensure the continuous independence of the external auditors. The Audit Committee reviews the 
arrangements for safeguarding auditors objectivity and independence. At least one member of the Audit Committee must have recent and relevant 
financial experience and all Committee members are expected to be financially aware.

The members of the Audit Committee are:

A  David Shearer (Chairman); and

A  David Gray.

Following David Gray’s appointment to the Board, he replaced Tim Ross on the Audit Committee. 

The Audit Committee reviews the scope, performance, results and cost effectiveness of the external audit and has delegated power from the Board to 
exercise the authority from shareholders to agree the fees of the external auditors. The Audit Committee is also responsible for satisfying itself on the 
independence and objectivity of the external auditors and makes recommendations to the Board relating to their appointment. The Committee reviews 
the operation of internal controls and reports to the Board on the annual review of internal control and risk management.

The external auditors are given the opportunity each year to speak confidentially to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee also monitors the Group’s whistle-blowing procedures, ensuring that appropriate procedures are in place to allow employees 
to raise matters of possible impropriety in confidence.
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committees oF the board continued
remunerAtion committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises the Company’s independent Non-executive Directors:

A  David Gray (Chairman); and

A  David Shearer.

Following David Gray’s appointment to the Board, he replaced Tim Ross as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Committee will meet 
at least annually and will agree further meetings at its discretion. The duties of the Committee are to:

A  determine and agree with the Board the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of the Chairman, Executive Directors, the Senior Managers 
and any other employees specified by the Board;

A  within the terms of the agreed policy, determine individual remuneration packages including bonuses, incentive payments, share options, pension 
arrangements and any other benefits;

A  determine the contractual terms on termination and individual termination payments, ensuring that the duty of the individual to mitigate loss 
is fully recognised;

A  in determining individual packages and arrangements, give due regard to the comments and recommendations of the combined code and 
the Listing Rules;

A  be told of and be given the chance to advise on any major changes in employee benefit structures in the Company;

A  recommend and monitor the level and structure of remuneration for Senior Managers and any other employees below Board level as required;

A  agree the policy for authorising claims for expenses from the Chief Executive and from the Chairman of the Board; and

A  recommend an annual report for the Board to put to shareholders on Executive remuneration compliant with relevant legal and regulatory provisions.

The Committee is authorised by the Board to:

A  seek any information it requires from any employee of the Company in order to perform its duties;

A  be responsible for establishing the selection criteria and then for selecting, appointing and setting the terms of reference for any remuneration 
consultants providing advice to the Committee, at the Company’s expense; and

A  obtain, at the Company’s expense, outside legal or other professional advice where necessary in the course of its activities.

nominAtion committee
The Nomination Committee comprises the following members:

A  Tim Ross (Chairman);

A  David Shearer; and

A  David Gray.

The function of the Nomination Committee is to provide a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors 
to the Board. In carrying out its duties, the Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for:

A  identifying and nominating candidates to fill Board vacancies;

A  evaluating the structure and composition of the Board with regard to the balance of skills, knowledge and experience and making 
recommendations accordingly;

A  reviewing the time requirements of Non-executive Directors;

A  giving full consideration to succession planning; and

A  reviewing the leadership of the Group.
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internal control
The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The implementation and maintenance of the 
risk management and internal control systems are the responsibility of the Executive Directors and other senior management. The system is designed 
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material 
misstatement or loss.

The Group operates within a clearly defined organisational structure with established responsibilities, authorities and reporting lines to the Board. 
The organisational structure has been designed in order to plan, execute, monitor and control the Group’s objectives effectively and ensure that 
internal control becomes embedded in the operations. The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports to the Board on issues relating to internal 
controls and risk management issues following each Audit Committee meeting.

The Group views the careful management of business risks as a key management activity. These business risks, which may be strategic, operational, 
reputational, financial or environmental, should be understood and visible. The business context determines in each situation the level of acceptable 
risk and controls. Risk assessment will be a regular agenda item at Board meetings at which business risk will be identified, the probability of risks 
occurring will be quantified and the impact on the business reviewed. Risk management forms part of an integrated assurance framework which 
includes management review, internal and external audit. The aim is to ensure that the business understands the key risks it faces, has an embedded 
risk management approach to all of its activities, links risk management to business performance reporting and seeks continuous improvement in the 
management of risk by sharing best practice throughout the organisation. The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the need for an internal 
audit function and are satisfied that, to date, this has not been required. The Board confirms that it intends to review the need for an internal audit 
function at least annually.

going concern
In determining whether the Group’s 2009 accounts can be prepared on a going concern basis, the Directors considered all factors likely to its future 
performance and financial position, including cash flows, borrowing facilities and the risks and uncertainties relating to its business activities. These are 
set out in the Finance Review on pages 14 to 17 and in the notes to the financial statements.

The key factors considered by the Directors were:

A the implications of the challenging economic environment and weakening levels of demand;

A the impact of upward price pressure on input prices;

A the ability of the Group to maintain its frequency of receipt of trade receivables and the credit risk associated with these balances;

A the competitive environment in which the Group operates; 

A the potential actions that could be taken in the event that revenues are worse than expected, in order to protect cash flows and operating profit; 

A the finance facilities available and banking covenants: at the year end the Group had access to £5.2 million undrawn overdraft facility; and

A indication from the bank that the overdraft facility will be renewed at the forthcoming annual review in February 2010.

The Group prepares regular forecasts and projections of revenues, profits and cash flows that are essential for identifying areas on which management 
can focus to improve performance and mitigate the possible adverse impact of a deteriorating economic outlook, these also provide projections of 
working capital requirements.

Having considered all the factors above impacting the Group’s business, having prepared detailed projections and sensitivities covering the period 
to December 2010 and notwithstanding the net current liability position shown by the balance sheet at the year of £9.0 million (2008 £8.6 million), 
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group can operate within the above noted bank facilities, including meeting 
the stated covenant requirements and therefore have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the forseeable future. Accordingly, 
the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group’s 2009 financial statements. 

relations with shareholders
The Board is accountable to shareholders for the Company’s continued success. The Board accordingly places great emphasis on maintaining good 
communications with shareholders. The Company co-ordinates its communications with shareholders through a combination of briefings to analysts 
and institutional shareholders, both at the interim and year end results. Site visits and individual discussions with Board members and key members 
of the management team help to ensure that the Group’s strategy is understood and any issues are addressed in a constructive way. 

The Senior Independent Non-executive Director is available throughout the year to meet with shareholders as appropriate. All brokers’ reports and 
analysts’ briefings are included in the Board reports sent to Directors. The Company’s website www.superglass.co.uk provides share price information 
and financial results and, together with the annual and interim reports, these form the principal means of communication with all shareholders.

auditors’ indePendence and objectivity
The Audit Committee monitors the non-audit services being provided to the Group by the auditors to ensure that their independence and objectivity 
are not impaired. Any non-audit services that may be perceived to be in conflict with the role of the external auditors must be submitted to the 
Committee for approval prior to engagement, regardless of the amounts involved. The auditors are prohibited from performing services where they 
may be required to audit their own work or participate in activities that would normally be undertaken by management. Details of the amounts paid 
to the external auditors during the year for audit and other services are set out in the notes to the financial statements on page 41.
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they are required 
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU) 
and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable 
law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit and loss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to:

A select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

A make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

A for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU;

A  for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial statements; and

A  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the parent company will 
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company’s transactions 
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements 
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets 
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and 
Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s website. 
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

on behalf of the Directors of the Company we confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

A  the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, 
financial position and profit or loss of the Group and Company; and

A  the Directors’ Report and Business Review include a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the financial position 
of the Group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

By order of the Board

tim ross  tony KirKbright
chAirmAn FinAnce Director 

stAtement oF Directors’ responsibilities
in resPect oF the annual rePort and the Financial statements
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We have audited the financial statements of Superglass Holdings plc for the year ended 31 August 2009 which comprise the Consolidated Income 
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense, the Consolidated and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is 
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU. The financial reporting framework that has been applied 
in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with sections 495, 496 and 497 of the Companies Act 2006. our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and 
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the 
company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

resPective resPonsibilities oF directors and auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 31, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical 
Standards for Auditors.

scoPe oF the audit oF the Financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB’s website at www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/UKP.

oPinion on Financial statements
In our opinion:

A  the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 August 2009 
and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

A  the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU;

A  the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

A  the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and, as regards the group financial 
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

oPinion on other matters Prescribed by the comPanies act 2006
In our opinion:

A  the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

A  the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the 
financial statements.

matters on which we are required to rePort by excePtion
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

A  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches 
not visited by us; or

A  the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting 
records and returns; or

A  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

A  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review:

A  the directors’ statement, set out on page 30, in relation to going concern; and

A  the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008 Combined Code 
specified for our review.

b marKs (senior statutory auditor)
For AnD on behAlF oF kpmg AuDit plc, stAtutory AuDitor
chArtereD AccountAnts
191 west george street
glAsgow g2 2lJ
uniteD kingDom

inDepenDent AuDitors’ report 
to the members oF suPerglass holdings Plc
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consoliDAteD income stAtement
For the year ended 31 august 2009

           Restated 
           (see note 1) 
          31 August 31 August 
          2009 2008 
         Note £000 £000

revenue        2 38,133 41,138

Cost of sales         (25,670) (24,636) 

Gross profit         12,463 16,502

Distribution expenses         (4,049) (5,257)

Administrative expenses         (6,540) (6,494)

Other operating income         299 307

Operating profit          2,173 5,058

Financial expenses        5 (1,540) (2,106)

Profit before taxation        3 633 2,952

Taxation        6  (191) (827)

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent      442 2,125

Earnings per share   

Basic earnings per share        22 0.8p 3.7p

Diluted earnings per share        22  0.8p 3.7p

consoliDAteD stAtement oF  
recogniseD income AnD expense
For the year ended 31 august 2009
           Restated 
           (see note 1) 
          31 August 31 August 
          2009 2008 
          £000 £000

Profit for the year         442 2,125

Total recognised income and expense for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent   442 2,125

The restatement described in note 1 has had no effect on the opening current year net assets or reserves as at 1 September 2009.
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       2009  2008

       Note £000 £000 £000 £000

non-current assets     

Property, plant and equipment      8  15,043  15,844

Intangible assets      9  18,598  22,989

         33,641  38,833

current assets     

Inventories      12 1,981  3,293 

Trade and other receivables      13 2,612  3,490 

Derivative financial instruments      16 —  201 

         4,593  6,984

total assets        38,234  45,817

Current liabilities     

other interest-bearing loans and borrowings     15 4,133  3,400 

Trade and other payables      17 7,762  10,087 

Deferred Government grants       193  193 

Income tax payable       1,375  1,861 

         13,463  15,541

Non-current liabilities     

other interest-bearing loans and borrowings     15 17,563  20,730 

Deferred Government grants       145  339 

Deferred tax      11 4,072  5,196 

         21,780  26,265

Total liabilities        35,243  41,806

net assets        2,991  4,011

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent      

Share capital      19  583  583

Share premium      19  1,108  1,108

Retained earnings      19  1,300  2,320

Total equity         2,991  4,011

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 November 2009 and were signed on its behalf by: 

tim ross tony KirKbright 
chAirmAn FinAnce Director 

consoliDAteD bAlAnce sheet
at 31 august 2009
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           Restated 
           (see note 1) 
          31 August 31 August 
          2009 2008 
         Note £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities   

Profit for the year        2 442 2,125

Adjustments for:   

Depreciation and amortisation         5,974 6,453

Net financial expense        5 1,540 2,106

Taxation        6 191 827

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions        102 110

Cash from operating activities before changes in working capital and provisions    8,249 11,621

Decrease/(increase) in inventories         1,312 (205)

Decrease in trade and other receivables        878 624

Decrease in trade, other payables and deferred Government grants      (2,439) (1,492)

Cash generated from operations         8,000 10,548

Interest paid         (1,325) (1,849)

Tax paid         (1,801) (1,783)

Net cash from operating activities        4,874 6,916

Cash flows from investing activities   

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment        (719) (2,315)

Net cash used in investing activities        (719) (2,315)

Cash flows from financing activities   

Purchase of own shares        19 —  (564)

Repayment of borrowings        15 (3,285) (3,285)

Payment of finance lease liabilities        15 (18) (1)

Dividends paid        7 (1,564) (985)

Net cash used in financing activities        (4,867) (4,835)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents        (712) (234)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year        (100) 134

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year        (812) (100)

 

consoliDAteD cAsh Flow stAtement
For the year ended 31 august 2009
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1 accounting Policies
Superglass Holdings Plc (“the Company”) is a company domiciled and incorporated in the United Kingdom. The accounts were approved 
by the Board on 25 November 2009.

stAtement oF compliAnce
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS (including International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee (IFRIC) interpretations) as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRS”). The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial 
statements in accordance with UK GAAP. These are presented on pages 53 to 56.

bAsis oF prepArAtion
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for intangible assets acquired in a business combination and derivative 
financial instruments, which are stated at their fair values. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling which is the 
Company’s presentational and functional currency. The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis for the reasons 
outlined on page 30.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRS requires the Directors to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. The estimates and judgments are based 
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis 
of making judgments about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented 
in these financial statements. 

restAtement oF certAin prior yeAr compArAtives
Following discussion with the Financial Reporting Review Panel concerning the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31 August 2008, the Company 
has chosen to restate the comparatives for the year ended 31 August 2007 and 31 August 2008 to reflect the adjustment to prior years deferred tax 
in respect of the change in the UK corporation tax from 30% to 28% in the year ended 31 August 2007 rather than the year ended 31 August 2008. 
This has the effect of increasing the charge to taxation and reducing the profit for the year ended 31 August 2008 by £354,000 and of reducing the 
charge to tax and increasing profit for year ended 31 August 2007 by £354,000. The deferred tax liability was also reduced by £354,000 in 2007 leading 
to an increase in net assets for that year. The Group has also restated earnings per share disclosures for 2006 and 2007 in the table on page 50 to 
more appropriately and consistently account for the impact of the bonus shares issued in 2006. This table also includes adjustments to the earnings 
per share calculations to reflect the changes to tax rates for 2007 and 2008. 

bAsis oF consoliDAtion
The consolidated financial statements comprise Superglass Holdings Plc and its subsidiaries. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared 
to the same reporting date as the parent company. Intra-group transactions and balances, including any unrealised gains and losses or income and 
expenses, arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial 
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable 
or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that 
control commences until the date that control ceases. 

Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange 
differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement. 

clAssiFicAtion oF FinAnciAl instruments issueD by the group
In accordance with IAS 32, financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity (i.e. forming part of shareholders’ funds) only to the extent 
that they meet the following two conditions:

A  they include no contractual obligations upon the Company (or Group as the case may be) to deliver cash or other financial assets to, or to exchange 
financial assets or financial liabilities with, another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company (or Group); and 

A  where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that includes no obligation to deliver 
a variable number of the Company’s own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the Company’s exchanging a fixed amount of 
cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified takes the legal 
form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and share premium account 
exclude amounts in relation to those shares. 

Where a financial instrument that contains both equity and financial liability components exists, these components are separated and accounted 
for individually under the above policy. The finance rate on the financial liability component is correspondingly higher over the life of the instrument.

notes Forming pArt oF 
the FinAnciAl stAtements
For the year ended 31 august 2009
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1 accounting Policies continued
clAssiFicAtion oF FinAnciAl instruments issueD by the group continueD
Finance payments associated with financial liabilities are dealt with as part of finance expenses. Finance payments associated with financial 
instruments that are classified in equity are dividends and are recorded directly in equity.

DerivAtive FinAnciAl instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date, 
taking into account interest rates and the creditworthiness of the swap counterparties at that date. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is 
their quoted market price at the balance sheet date, being the present value of the quoted forward price.

property, plAnt AnD equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for and depreciated as separate items 
of property, plant and equipment.

Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are classified as finance leases. 
Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum 
lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Lease payments are accounted for as described below.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, from time to time useful economic life may be extended where it is certain that the asset will remain in use beyond its original estimated life. 
A periodic review of plant and machinery estimated useful life was carried out during the year ended 31 August 2009 and this resulted in a reduced 
depreciation charge for the year of £618,000 as it was found that certain items of machinery have a longer life than anticipated. Residual values of 
buildings, property, plant and equipment are assumed to be nil. Land and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated. The estimated 
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings    50 years

Plant, machinery and equipment 9–15 years 

Motor vehicles   4 years

intAngible Assets AnD gooDwill
Goodwill represents amounts arising on acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the difference between the fair value of the assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the consideration given. Identifiable intangibles are those which 
can be sold separately or which arise from legal rights regardless of whether those rights are separable. Goodwill is stated at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) and is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment. 

The cost to the Group of licence agreement assets was determined by the fair value of the historical costs inflated to current prices, net of impairment 
losses which is an approximation to market value. The Directors consider that the licence which runs in perpetuity with no further payments due, 
has an indefinite useful life and therefore licence agreement assets are not amortised but are tested annually for impairment. 

The cost to the Group of customer contractual relationships acquired as part of a business combination is determined by the net present value of 
the future cash flow benefits anticipated to arise from the contractual arrangements less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Computer 
software is stated at purchase cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software   3 years

Contractual customer relationships 6 years

trADe AnD other receivAbles
Trade and other receivables are initially measured on the basis of their fair value then carried at amortised cost less impairment charges.

inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred 
in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories, cost includes an 
appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity. Engineering spares are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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notes Forming pArt oF 
the FinAnciAl stAtements CoNTINUED
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1 accounting Policies continued
cAsh AnD cAsh equivAlents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part 
of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the statement of cash flows.

impAirment
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each balance sheet date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

For goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated at each balance sheet date.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses 
are recognised in the income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGU are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to CGUs and then to reduce 
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis. The Group has one CGU.

CALCULATIoN oF RECovERABLE AMoUNT
The recoverable amount of assets or CGU is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the 
CGU to which the asset belongs.

REvERSALS oF IMPAIRMENT
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. 

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed when there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

interest-beAring borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing 
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the 
period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

employee beneFits
DEFINED CoNTRIBUTIoN PLANS
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal 
or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee 
benefit expense in profit or loss when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction 
in future payments is available.

provisions
A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting 
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and where appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability.

revenue
Revenue comprises the sale of goods net of cash settlement discount and volume related retrospective rebates, excluding sales taxes. Revenue from 
the sale of goods is recognised in the income statement when goods have been despatched to the customer. Cash discounts available for timely settlement 
of receivables that are outstanding but within terms, are estimated and recognised where it is probable that the discount will be taken. Estimates are 
made of the amount likely to be paid to customers in respect of volume rebates and this is deducted from revenue when the right to the rebate accumulates. 
Where the Group sells to distributors, revenue is recognised when there are no further redistribution obligations on the Group. Returns are only accepted 
where product quality has been shown to be an issue. 



39Superglass Holdings Plc annual report and accounts 2009

1 accounting Policies continued
expenses
oPERATING LEASE PAYMENTS
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

FINANCE LEASE PAYMENTS
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated 
to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

NET FINANCING CoSTS
Finance expenses comprise interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as liabilities and finance leases, interest receivable on funds 
invested, and foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognised in the income statement.

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective rate of interest method. 

grAnt income
Government grants relate primarily to regional selective assistance received on the achievement of certain job creation and job protection targets 
as well as related capital expenditure.

Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will 
comply with the conditions associated with the grant. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss on a 
systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are recognised 
in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

tAxAtion
Tax comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly 
in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date 
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition 
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination; and differences relating to investments in 
subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected 
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance 
sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. 

eArnings per shAre
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products within a particular economic environment (geographical 
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. 

shAre-bAseD pAyment trAnsActions
The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation plans being the CSoP long-term incentive plan for senior managers and 
the SAYE scheme for all employees, subject to minimum service. The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee expense in the 
Consolidated Income Statement with a corresponding increase in shareholders’ equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and spread over the 
period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the share incentives on a straight-line basis. The fair value of the share incentives 
granted is measured using appropriate valuation models, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share incentives were granted. 
At each reporting date, the Group re-estimates the number of share incentives that are expected to vest based on non-market conditions. Any adjustment 
is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement, with a corresponding adjustment to shareholders’ equity, over the remaining vesting period.
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2 segmental rePorting
The Group has only one class of business – the manufacturing and sale of insulation materials. Segmental information is presented in respect of the 
Group’s geographical segments by location of customers. The primary format is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

Segmental results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. 

yeAr enDeD 31 August 2009 
       UK and  Other  
       Ireland Europe Unallocated Total 
       £000 £000 £000 £000

Segment revenue       36,872 1,261 —  38,133

Segment result       2,009 164 —  2,173
Net financing cost       —  —  (1,540) (1,540)

Profit before tax       2,009 164 (1,540) 633
Income tax expense       —  —  (191) (191)

Profit for the year       2,009 164 (1,731) 442

Assets       —  — 38,234 38,234
Liabilities       — —  (8,100) (8,100)
Capital expenditure       —  — 780 780

yeAr enDeD 31 August 2008
       UK and  Other  
       Ireland Europe Unallocated Total 
       £000 £000 £000 £000

Segment revenue       38,813 2,325 — 41,138

Segment result       4,605 453 — 5,058
Net financing cost       — — (2,106) (2,106)

Profit before tax       4,605 453 (2,106) 2,952
Income tax expense*       — — (827) (827)

Profit for the year*       4,605 453 (2,933) 2,125

Assets       — — 45,817 45,817
Liabilities       — — (10,619) (10,619)
Capital expenditure       — — 2,353 2,353

* As restated (see note 1).

Assets and liabilities are not specifically allocated to business segments as the total assets and liabilities of the Group are utilised, managed and 
reported centrally across all business segments. Consequently it is not possible to provide a meaningful allocation of assets and liabilities for each 
business segment as this cannot be done on a reasonable basis.

Liabilities exclude other interest-bearing loans and borrowings, income tax payable and deferred tax liabilities.

All segments are continuing operations.

3 ProFit beFore tax and auditors’ remuneration
Included in profit before tax are the following:
     Cost of sales  Administrative expenses   Total

     31 August 31 August 31 August 31 August 31 August 31 August 
     2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
     £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Depreciation of property plant and equipment:      
owned assets     1,564 2,039 17 21 1,581 2,060
operating lease charges:      
– property     42 42 3 2 45 44
– other     617 655 44 57 661 712
Changes in value of derivative financial instruments*   32 (32) — 226 32 194

     2,255 2,704 64 306 2,319 3,010

*  The change in value of derivative financial instruments relates to the movement on gas, power and foreign exchange contracts, entered into in the normal course of business, which are 
not designated as hedging derivatives.
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3 ProFit beFore tax and auditors’ remuneration continued
operating income includes the following:
         31 August 31 August 
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Rental income         137 145
Release of deferred Government grant        193 131

         330 276

AuDit AnD non-AuDit Fee Disclosures (All incluDeD within ADministrAtive expenses)
         31 August 31 August 
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Audit of these financial statements (Group and Company)       13 13
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation      20 20
Other services pursuant to legislation        13 15
other services relating to taxation         12 18

4 staFF numbers and costs
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows:

         2009 2008

Selling and administration         35 38
Production         171 175

         206 213

The average payroll costs of these persons were as follows:

         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Wages and salaries         5,486 6,191
Social security costs         557 658
Contributions to defined contribution pension plans       145 170

         6,188 7,019

Directors’ remuneration is disclosed on pages 23 and 24.

5 Finance income and exPense
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Interest payable on bank loans and other borrowings       1,371 1,848
Net change in value of financial assets* at fair value through profit and loss      169 258

Financial expenses         1,540 2,106

* These financial assets consist of interest rate caps.

6 taxation
recogniseD in the income stAtement
          Restated 
          (see note 1) 
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

current tax expense  
Current year         1,376 2,167
Adjustments for prior years         (61) (66)

         1,315 2,101

Deferred tax expense  
Origination and reversal of temporary differences        (1,191) (1,274)
Adjustment in respect of prior years          67 —

         (1,124) (1,274)

Total tax in income statement         191 827
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6 taxation continued
reconciliAtion oF eFFective tAx rAte
          Restated 
          (see note 1) 
       2009 2009 2008 2008 
       % £000 % £000

Profit before tax        633  2,952

Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2008: 28%)     28 177 28 827
Non-deductible expenses       1 8 1 29
Adjustments in respect of prior years       1 6 (2) (66)
Effect of 30% tax rate for part of year       — — 1 37

Total tax in income statement       30 191 28 827

7 dividends
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Amount recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year   
Final dividend for the year ended 31 August 2008 of 1.7 pence (2008: £nil)      985 —
Interim dividend for year ended 31 August 2009 of 1.0 pence per share (2008: 1.7 pence)    579 985

         1,564 985

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 August 2009 of 0.5 pence (2008: 1.7 pence)    290 985

8 ProPerty, Plant and equiPment
         Assets in  
      Land and  Plant and Motor course of  
      buildings equipment vehicles construction Total 
      £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

cost     
Balance at 1 September 2007      3,414 26,438 52 282 30,186
Additions      2 269 2 2,080 2,353
Disposals      — (10) (14) — (24)
Transfers      — 1,758 — (1,758) —

Balance at 31 August 2008 and 1 September 2008    3,416 28,455 40 604 32,515
Additions      — 545 2 233 780
Disposals      — (1,146) — —  (1,146)
Transfers      — 326 —  (326) — 

balance at 31 August 2009      3,416 28,180 42 511 32,149

Depreciation and impairment      
Balance at 1 September 2007      426 14,164 45 — 14,635
Depreciation charge for the period      52 2,003 5 — 2,060
Disposals      — (10) (14) — (24)

Balance at 31 August 2008 and 1 September 2008    478 16,157 36 — 16,671
Depreciation charge for the period      52 1,527 2 —  1,581
Disposals      — (1,146) — —  (1,146)

balance at 31 August 2009      530  16,538 38 — 17,106

Net book value     
At 1 September 2007      2,988 12,274 7 282 15,551

At 31 August 2008      2,938 12,298 4 604 15,844

At 31 August 2009      2,886 11,642 4 511 15,043

Included in the net book value of plant and machinery are assets held under finance leases of £101,102 (2008: £42,000) after charging depreciation 
of £5,288 (2008: £nil). Assets previously classified as under finance leases are now owned.

Included in the net book value of freehold land and buildings is £794,000 (2008: £794,000) in relation to land which has not been depreciated.
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9 intangible assets
        Contractual 
        customer  
      Goodwill Licence relationships Software Total 
      £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

cost     
Balance at 1 September 2007      9,502 489 26,301 60 36,352
Additions      — — — 4 4

Balance at 31 August 2008 and 1 September 2008    9,502 489 26,301 64 36,356
Additions      —  —  —  2 2

balance at 31 August 2009      9,502  489  26,301 66 36,358

Amortisation and impairment      
Balance at 1 September 2007      — — 8,937 37 8,974
Amortisation for the period      — — 4,384 9 4,393

Balance at 31 August 2008 and 1 September 2008    — — 13,321 46 13,367
Amortisation for the period      —  —  4,384 9 4,393

balance at 31 August 2009      — — 17,705 55 17,760

Net book value     
At 1 September 2007      9,502 489 17,364 23 27,378

At 31 August 2008      9,502 489 12,980 18 22,989

At 31 August 2009      9,502 489 8,596 11 18,598

The amortisation charge is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.

The Group tests goodwill and licences annually for impairment. The impairment test involves calculating the recoverable amount which is based 
on the present value of expected future cash flows (value in use). The Directors consider that the Group has only one CGU and the value in use 
of all of the Group’s assets has been considered in performing the impairment review.

The key assumptions underlying the cash flow projections within the impairment review are revenue growth, margins, the level of operating expenditure, 
the amount of capital expenditure and the terminal value of the business. The cash flow projections are based on formally approved management cash 
flow projections for a five-year period. These are then extrapolated into perpetuity using a nominal long-term growth rate based on the UK GDP of 0.7% 
(2008: 1.3%). A pre-tax discount rate of 8.3% (2008: 8.3%) has been used. The cost of capital assigned can have a significant effect on valuation. 
The cost of capital reflects a number of financial and economic variables including that risk free interest rate and a premium to reflect the inherent risks. 
These variables are established based on management judgment. 

The recoverable amount of the Group’s CGU exceeded the relative carrying value at the time of the impairment test. While cash flow projections are 
subject to inherent uncertainty, reasonably possible changes in key assumptions applied in assessing the value in use would not cause a change 
to the conclusion reached.

Having reviewed the key assumptions used, the Directors believe that, should the discount rate change by 1%, the value of the discounted cash flows 
would increase or decrease by £0.9 million.

10 subsidiaries
The Group has the following principal subsidiaries:

  Country of Class of 
  incorporation shares held ownership Trade

Superglass Group Limited  UK ordinary 100% Holding company
Superglass Insulation Limited*  UK ordinary 100% Manufacture and sale of insulation materials

* Held indirectly.

11 deFerred tax assets and liabilities
recogniseD DeFerreD tAx Assets AnD liAbilities 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

      2009  2008

     Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net 
     £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Property, plant and equipment     — 1,586 1,586 — 1,419 1,419
Intangible assets     — 2,524 2,524 — 3,771 3,771
Derivative financial instruments     — — — — 53 53
Trade and other receivables     (38) — (38) (47) — (47)
Trade and other payables     — — — — — —

Net tax (assets)/liabilities     (38) 4,110 4,072 (47) 5,243 5,196
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11 deFerred tax assets and liabilities continued
movement in DeFerreD tAx During the perioD
    1 September     
    2007   Recognised  Recognised 
    as previously Restatement 1 September in income 31 August in income 31 August 
    stated (see note 1) as restated statement 2008 statement 2009 
    £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Property, plant and equipment    1,419 — 1,419 — 1,419 167  1,586
Trade and other receivables    (47) — (47) — (47) 9 (38)
Trade and other payables    (26) — (26) 26 — —  — 
Intangible assets    5,352 (354) 4,998 (1,227) 3,771 (1,247) 2,524
Derivative financial instruments     126 —  126 (73) 53 (53) — 

    6,824 (354) 6,470 (1,274) 5,196 (1,124) 4,072

12 inventories
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Raw materials and consumables         239 351
Engineering spares         657 754
Finished goods         1,085 2,188

         1,981 3,293

Stocks are shown net of write-downs amounting to £nil (2008: £nil). Write-downs utilised were £nil (2008: £13,482).

13 trade and other receivables
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Trade receivables         2,165 3,134
Other trade receivables and prepayments        447 356

         2,612 3,490

An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods of £214,000 (2008: £191,000). of this amount, £23,000 
(2008: £20,000) was recognised in the income statement.

14 cash and cash equivalents
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

overdraft (see note 15)         (812) (100)

15 other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Non-current liabilities  
Secured bank loans         17,512 20,703
Finance lease liabilities         51 27

         17,563 20,730

Current liabilities  
Bank overdraft         812 100
Current portion of secured bank loans        3,286 3,286
Current portion of finance lease liabilities        35 14

         4,133 3,400
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15 other interest-bearing loans and borrowings continued
terms AnD Debt repAyment scheDule 
Secured bank loans are stated net of finance costs allocated of £115,000 at 31 August 2009 (2008: £209,000).

Secured bank loans relate to loans of £23,000,000 and £5,000,000 taken out with the Group’s bankers on 9 July 2007. The £23,000,000 loan is being 
repaid over seven years by one payment of £482,000 on 31 August 2007 and quarterly repayments of £821,000 commencing on 30 November 2007. 
The loan attracts interest at LIBoR plus a margin of 1.75% per annum. The £5,000,000 facility is due for repayment in full in July 2014 and attracts an 
annual interest charge of LIBoR plus a margin of 2.0%.

The bank loans are secured as follows:

A  a first floating charge granted by the parent company and each subsidiary undertaking;

A  a composite guarantee granted by the parent company and each subsidiary undertaking, as guarantor, on account of the parent company and each 
subsidiary undertaking, as principal; and

A  legal first charge over freehold property.

FinAnce leAse liAbilities
Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:
      2009  2008

     Minimum    Minimum   
     lease    lease   
     payments Interest Principal payments Interest Principal 
     £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Less than one year     38 3 35 15 1 14
Second to fifth years inclusive     56 5 51 29 2 27

     94 8 86 44 3 41

16 Financial instruments
overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

A  credit risk;

A  liquidity risk; and

A  market risk.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring 
and managing risk and the Group’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews 
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

creDit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and 
arises primarily from the Group’s trade receivables from customers. Management has credit insurance and a credit policy in place and the exposure 
to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed for all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The balance 
presented in the balance sheet is net of accumulated provisions for retrospective rebates and of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the 
Group’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic climate.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as all significant commercial trade receivables are covered by either credit insurance 
or accumulated balances of rebate due to customers, capable of offset against outstanding trading balances.

liquiDity risk
The liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liability 
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

At the year end, the Group maintained the following lines of credit:

A  a £6 million overdraft facility; and

A  a £21 million term loan facility.
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16 Financial instruments continued
mArket risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising 
the return.

Generally the Group seeks to minimise this risk through hedge arrangements designed to manage a proportion of the Group’s overall exposure.

creDit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

         2009 2008 
        Note £000 £000

Receivables         13 2,165 3,134
Cash         14 —  —

         2,165 3,134

Credit risk at the reporting date in relation to receivables:

         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

UK and Ireland         2,037 2,831
other Europe         128 303

         2,165 3,134

The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

      2009  2008

      Gross Impairment Total Gross Impairment Total 
      £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Not past due      2,126 —  2,126  2,709 — 2,709
Past due 0–60 days     195 (156)  39  289 — 289
More than 60 days past due     58 (58) —   327 (191) 136

     2,379 (214) 2,165  3,325  (191) 3,134

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Balance at 1 September         191 171
Impairment loss recognised         23 20

Balance at 31 August         214 191

The impairment loss at 31 August 2009 of £214,000 is a provision for receivables due from customers.

The allowance account in respect of trade receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Group is satisfied that no recovery of the amount 
is possible; at that point the amount is considered irrecoverable and written off against the financial asset directly. 

liquiDity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the balance sheet date, including estimated interest payments based on the position 
at the balance sheet date and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

31 AUGUST 2009
    Carrying  Contractual 6 months 6–12 1–2 2–5 More than 
    amount cash flows or less months years years 5 years 
Non–derivative financial liabilities    £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000

Secured bank loans     20,798 (23,536) (1,926) (1,903) (3,979) (15,728) —
Finance leases    86 (94) (18) (18) (36) (22)  — 
Trade and other payables    7,273 (7,273) (7,273) —  —  —  — 
Bank overdraft     812 (812) (812) —  —  —  —

     28,969 (31,715) (10,029) (1,921) (4,015) (15,750) —
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16 Financial instruments continued
liquiDity risk continueD
31 AUGUST 2008
    Carrying  Contractual 6 months 6–12 1–2 2–5 More than 
    amount cash flows or less months years years 5 years 
Non-derivative financial liabilities    £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000

Secured bank loans    23,989 (29,739) (2,394)  (2,342)  (4,531) (12,360) (8,112)
Finance leases    41 (44) (7) (7) (15) (15) —
Trade and other payables    9,425 (9,425) (9,425) — — — —
Bank overdraft    100 (100) (100) — — — —

    33,555 (39,308) (11,926) (2,349)  (4,546) (12,375) (8,112)

Trade and other payables excludes amounts provided for certain accruals.

The following table shows outstanding borrowings, the facilities available to the Group and undrawn amounts at the year end:

      2009  2008

     Balance   Undrawn Balance  Undrawn 
     outstanding Facility amounts outstanding Facility amounts 
     £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Bank loans     20,798 20,798 — 23,989 23,989 —
Bank overdraft     812 6,000 5,188 100 8,000 7,900

mArket risk
PRoFILE
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial liabilities was:
        Carrying amount

         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Fixed rate instruments  
Financial liabilities         86 41

Variable rate instruments  
Financial liabilities         20,798 23,989

The Group uses interest rate caps to manage its exposure to interest rate movements on its bank borrowings. In a previous year, the Group entered into 
interest rate cap transactions for a value of £12.5 million (interest capped at 5.5% until 28 August 2009) and £7.5 million (interest rate capped at 5.5% 
until 31 August 2010). The fair value of the swap is £nil (2008: £169,000). These amounts are based on market values provided by the Group’s bankers. 
Interest rate swaps and foreign exchange swaps are not designated as effective cash flow hedges and the effect of movements in fair value of 
£169,000 (2008: £258,000) and £32,000 (2008: £32,000) respectively for the year ended 31 August 2009 has been reflected in the income statement 
within financial expense and cost of sales respectively. 

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. 
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

         100bp  100bp 
         increase decrease 
         £000 £000

31 August 2009  
Variable rate instruments         (232) 232
Interest rate swaps         —  — 

31 August 2008  
variable rate instruments         (263) 263
Interest rate swaps         200 (200)

The Group manages foreign currency exposure by firstly offsetting currency receivables and payables where practical and by use of forward exchange 
contracts. The impact of a 1% fluctuation in the exchange rate of Pounds Sterling to Euros or US Dollars would be immaterial.
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16 Financial instruments continued
FAir vAlues
The fair values together with the carrying amount shown in the balance sheet are as follows:
       2009  2008

       Carrying  Fair Carrying Fair 
       amount value amount value 
       £000 £000 £000 £000

Trade receivables       2,165 2,165 3,134 3,134
Derivatives financial instruments – interest rate swaps     —  —  169 169
Derivatives financial instruments – forward contracts     — —  32 32
Bank loans       (20,798) (20,798) (23,989) (23,989)
Bank overdraft       (812) (812) (100) (100)
obligations under finance leases       (86) (86) (41) (41)
Trade and other payables       (6,412) (6,412) (8,306) (8,306)

       (25,943) (25,943) (29,101) (29,101)

ESTIMATIoN oF FAIR vALUES
The following summarises the methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments reflected in the above table.

TRADE RECEIvABLES AND PAYABLES
For receivables/payables with a remaining life of less than one year or that are receivable or payable on demand, the carrying amount is deemed 
to reflect the fair value.

Receipts from customers and payments to suppliers on undisputed invoices are within allowable credit terms.

CASH AND CASH EqUIvALENTS
The fair value is deemed to be the same as the carrying amount due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

DERIvATIvE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INTEREST RATE SWAPS AND FoRWARD CURRENCY CoNTRACTS
Fair value is based on values provided by the Group’s bankers using the appropriate valuation techniques based on rates current at the year end.

BANK LoANS
Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash flows at current interest rates.

oBLIGATIoNS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
The carrying amount of these liabilities approximates their fair value.

17 trade and other Payables
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Trade payables          6,412 8,306
Non-trade payables and accrued expenses        1,350 1,781

         7,762 10,087

18 emPloyee beneFits
DeFineD contribution plAns
Superglass Insulation Limited operates a defined contribution Group Sponsored Personal Pension Plan, membership of which is voluntary. The assets of the 
scheme are held separately from those of the Company in independently administered funds. The cost of contributions to this scheme is set out in note 4.

19 caPital and reserves
reconciliAtion oF movement in cApitAl AnD reserves
       Share Share Retained Total 
       capital premium earnings equity 
       £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 August 2007 as previously stated      583 1,108 1,280 2,971
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax (see note 1)     — — 354 354

Balance at 31 August 2007 as restated      583 1,108 1,634 3,325
Total recognised income and expense      — — 2,125 2,125
Purchase of own shares       — — (564) (564)
Dividend paid        — — (985) (985)
Equity-settled share-based payments      — — 110 110

Balance at 31 August 2008       583 1,108 2,320 4,011
Total recognised income and expense      — — 442 442
Dividend paid        — — (1,564) (1,564)
Equity-settled share-based payments      — — 102 102

balance at 31 August 2009       583 1,108 1,300 2,991
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20 share caPital
          2009 2008 
         £ £

Authorised  
83,434,910 (2008: 83,434,910) ordinary shares of £0.01 each       834,349 834,349

         £ £

Allotted, called up and fully paid 
58,333,333 (2008: 58,333,333) ordinary shares of £0.01 each       583,333 583,333

Disclosed as:

         2009 2008 
         £ £

Equity         583,333 583,333

          Weighted 
          average  
          number 
          of shares

At beginning and end of year          57,938,333

At the end of the year the Group held 395,000 shares (2008: 395,000). The shares were purchased to satisfy the requirements of the Group’s SAYE 
scheme, details of which are disclosed below. Shares were bought at various times throughout 2008 and the cost is shown in note 19. The market value 
of the shares at 31 August 2009 is £140,225 (2008: £227,125).

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. The holders of the shares are entitled to receive dividends as 
declared from time to time, are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company and all shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s 
residual assets.

21 share-based Payments
sAvings relAteD shAre option (sAye) scheme
The employee SAYE scheme is open to all employees subject to minimum service. Employees save over three years at the end of which shares can be 
purchased during the following six-month period. During the period the Group issued no new options (2008: nil) under this scheme. Grants of options 
were made on 12 July 2007 at a price 20% below the market price at the date of the offer.

long-term incentive plAn (csop)
on 27 July 2007 the Group introduced a new Long-Term Incentive Plan for Senior Managers. Shares are conditionally awarded under this plan and vest 
in employees based on the following performance criteria.

The options will vest if the average annual percentage growth in EPS over the performance period is at least equal to the average annual percentage 
growth in Retail Price Index plus 3% (the lower target) and 10% (the upper target). At the lower target 40% of the options vest, additional options vest 
on a sliding scale up to 100% at the upper target.

The fair value of the awards under the two incentive plans were estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The significant inputs into the 
model were the risk free interest rate, expected dividend yield, initial resting period and expected share price volatility.

  At   At Exercise  
  1 September    31 August price Date Expiry 
Held by employees  2008 Granted Forfeited 2009 (pence) exercisable date

SAYE  177,156 —  (136,993) 40,163 144 1 September 2010 28 February 2010
CSoP  66,666 —  —  66,666 180 12 July 2010 12 July 2017

The market price of the shares on 31 August 2009 was 35.5 pence and the range during the year was 12.75 pence to 64 pence. 
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22 earnings Per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share and underlying earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders as follows:

       2009  2008

       Basic Adjusted Basic Adjusted

Earnings (£000)       442 442 2,125* 2,125*
Adjusted for:
Amortisation of intangibles (£000)       —  4,393 —   4,393

       442 4,835 2,125 6,518

Number of shares at start of period       58,333,333 58,333,333 58,333,333 58,333,333
Effects of other shares issued and redeemed      (395,000) (395,000) (191,353) (191,353)

Weighted average number of shares       57,938,333 57,938,333 58,141,980 58,141,980

Weighted average number of diluted shares      57,938,333 57,938,333 58,141,980 58,141,980

Earnings per share       0.8p 8.3p 3.7p 11.3p
Earnings per share as reported in 2008 financial statements (see note 1 restatement of comparatives)    4.2p 11.8p
Diluted earnings per share       0.8p 8.3p 3.7p 11.3p
Diluted earnings per share as reported in 2008 financial statements (see note 1 restatement of comparatives)   4.2p 11.8p

* Earnings restated for the effect of deferred tax adjustment as per note 1.

As a result of discussion with the Financial Reporting Review Panel the Company has chosen to restate earnings per share disclosures for 2006 
and 2007 in the table below to consistently account for the impact of the bonus shares issued in 2006 in accordance with IAS 33.

       2007  2006

       Basic Adjusted Basic Adjusted

Earnings (£000)       982* 982* 1,260 1,260
Adjusted for:
Non-recurring items (£000)       — 1,675 — —
Amortisation of intangibles (£000)       — 4,393 — 4,596

       982 7,050  1,260 5,856

Number of shares at start of period       383,333 383,333 — —
Effect of bonus shares issued       57,165,517 57,165,517 57,165,517 57,165,517
Effects of other shares issued and redeemed      126,111 126,111 383,333 383,333

Weighted average number of shares       57,674,961 57,674,961 57,548,850 57,548,850
Effect of dilutive share options in issue      10,339 10,339 — —

Weighted average number of diluted shares      57,685,300 57,685,300 57,548,850 57,548,850

Earnings per share       1.7p 12.2p 2.2p 10.2p
Earnings per share as reported in 2007 financial statements     6.4p 68.7p 12.9p 60.0p
Earnings per share as reported in 2008 financial statements     1.1p 11.5p 
Diluted earnings per share       1.7p 12.2p 2.2p 10.2p
Diluted earnings per share as reported in 2007 financial statements    6.4p 68.7p 12.9p 60.0p
Diluted earnings per share as reported in 2008 financial statements    1.1p 11.5p 

* Earnings restated for the effect of deferred tax adjustment as per note 1.
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23 oPerating leases
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Less than one year         66 104
Between one and five years         305 277
More than five years         2,835 2,835

         3,206 3,216

The Group leases warehouses, plant and machinery and motor vehicles under operating leases:

offices, manufacturing facilities  10 years

Plant and machinery   5–15 years

Motor vehicles   4 years

During the year ended 31 August 2009, £706,000 was recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Income Statement in respect of operating leases 
(2008: £756,000).

24 commitments and contingencies
Capital expenditure contracted for at 31 August 2009 for which no provision has been made in these financial statements was £nil (2008: £128,000).

The Group has given guarantees, secured by a fixed and floating charge over all assets of the Company, in respect of bank borrowings by certain other 
Group undertakings in the Superglass Group. The bank borrowings are disclosed in note 15.

25 accounting estimates and judgments
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

criticAl Accounting estimAtes AnD Assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related 
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

A  Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 1. The recoverable 
amount of the Group’s CGU has been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.

A  Life of contractual customer relationships in intangible assets

The Group amortises customer contracts over their estimated economic life in accordance with note 1. These lives are based upon management’s 
estimates of the remaining useful economic life.

A  Life of licence agreement in intangible assets

The licence agreement has been ascribed an indefinite life as it runs in perpetuity with no payments due in respect of royalties and as a result, licence 
agreement assets are not amortised, but are tested annually for impairment.

A  Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation 
techniques. The Group uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at 
each balance sheet date. 
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26 new standards and interPretations not yet adoPted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 31 August 2009 and have not been 
applied in preparing these financial statements:

A  IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: A Revised Presentation will require the Group to present a statement of changes in equity accompanied 
by either a statement of comprehensive income or an income statement accompanied by a statement of other comprehensive income.

A  Amendment to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs removes the previously available option to expense all borrowing costs incurred on production of qualifying 
assets. It is not expected to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

A  Amendment to IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements removes the requirement to record pre-acquisition dividends as a credit 
to investment rather than income in the parent company. It is not expected to have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

A  Amendment to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – Puttable Financial Instruments and 
obligations Arising on Liquidation provides exemptions from the existing requirements when certain circumstances are met. It is not expected 
to have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

A  Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement: Eligible Hedged Items clarifies two hedge accounting issues: inflation 
in a financial hedged item and a one sided risk in a hedged item. It is not expected to have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

A  Amendments to IFRS 7: Improving Disclosures About Financial Instruments requires additional disclosure but will not impact the reported results 
of the Company or Group.

A  Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payments – vesting Conditions and Cancellations clarifies the definition of vesting conditions in relation 
to share-based payments, amongst other things. It is not expected to have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

A  IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations requires acquisition costs incurred in a business combination to be expensed as incurred rather than included 
in the cost of acquisition and determination of goodwill. It also brings about changes to the current accounting in relation to contingent consideration 
and various other aspects of accounting for business combinations. This will affect any future acquisitions by the Group.

A  IFRS 8 operating Segments is a disclosure standard which may result in changes to the segmental information currently disclosed, but will have 
no impact on the reported results or the financial position of the Group.

A  Improvements to IFRS incorporates a number of non-urgent amendments to IFRS. The Group has not yet determined the full potential effect 
of the amendments; however, they are not expected to be significant.

The amendment to IAS 39 relating to eligible hedged items has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The remaining standards and interpretations have 
been endorsed.

There are a number of additional standards and interpretations not yet in force which are not relevant to the Group. These include amendments to IFRS 1 
relating to first time adoption of IFRS and IFRIC 12,13,15 and 17. 

27 related Parties
iDentity oF relAteD pArties
The Group has a related party relationship with the defined contribution pension fund by virtue of some of the Directors being trustees 
and with its Executive and Non-executive Directors.

trAnsActions with key mAnAgement personnel
Further information relating to Directors’ remuneration is contained in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group, who comprise the Executive and Non-executive Directors along with certain 
of the Group’s Senior Managers, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related party Disclosures. 

          Restated 
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Short-term employee benefits          523 668
Post employment benefits         19 20

         542 688

The prior year information in the table above has been restated to include the remuneration included within the Directors’ Remuneration Report 
and onto a basis consistent with that in the current year.

trAnsActions with DeFineD contribution pension schemes
Contributions to the defined contribution plans are disclosed in note 4.
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uk gAAp pArent compAny bAlAnce sheet
at 31 august 2009

          2009 2008 
         Note £000 £000

Fixed assets   

Investment in subsidiary        3 212 110

current assets   

Debtors and prepayments        4 13,597 9,485

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year       5 (5,429) (3,497)

net current assets         8,168 5,988

net assets         8,380 6,098

Capital and reserves   

Called up share capital        6 583 583

Share premium account        7 1,108 1,108

Profit and loss account        8 6,689 4,407

Shareholders’ funds          8,380 6,098

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 November 2009 and were signed on its behalf by:

tim ross tony KirKbright
chAirmAn FinAnce Director
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1 signiFicant accounting Policies
bAsis oF prepArAtion
The Company’s financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, in accordance with applicable UK Accounting Standards. The following 
accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the Company’s financial statements.

proFit AnD loss Account
Under section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account.

relAteD pArty trAnsActions
As the parent company of the Superglass Holdings Group, the financial statements for which can be found on pages 33 to 56, the Company has taken 
advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 8 and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with entities which form part of the Group.

tAxAtion
The Company’s tax charge is based on profit for the year and tax rates in force during the year. Estimation of the tax charge requires an assessment 
to be made of the potential tax treatment of certain items which will only be resolved once finally agreed with the relevant tax authorities.

DeFerreD tAxAtion
Deferred tax is recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting 
purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19. A net deferred tax asset is regarded 
as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be 
sufficient taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

investments
Investments are stated at cost less provisions for any impairment.

shAre-bAseD pAyments
The fair value of employee share options granted is calculated at grant date and the resulting cost is charged to the profit and loss account over 
the vesting period of the options with a corresponding increase in equity. The value of the charge is adjusted to reflect expected and actual levels 
of options vesting. Failures to vest as a result of market conditions are not reversed.

treAsury shAres
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognised 
as a change in equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and presented as a deduction from profit and loss reserves.

provisions AnD contingent liAbilities
In accordance with FRS 12 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, provisions are recognised where there is a present obligation as 
a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. If these conditions are not met, no provision is recognised. However, contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements, unless the possibility of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. Contingent gains are not recognised unless realisation 
of the profit is virtually certain.

clAssiFicAtion oF FinAnciAl instruments
Following the adoption of FRS 25, financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity (i.e. forming part of shareholders’ funds) only 
to the extent that they meet the following two conditions:

A  they include no contractual obligations upon the Company (or Group as the case may be) to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange 
financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company (or Group); and

A  where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that includes no obligation to deliver 
a variable number of the Company’s own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the Company exchanging a fixed amount of cash 
or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified takes the legal 
form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and share premium account 
exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

Finance payments associated with financial liabilities are dealt with as part of interest payable and similar charges. Finance payments associated 
with financial instruments that are classified as part of shareholders’ funds are dealt with as appropriations in the reconciliation of movements in 
shareholders’ funds.

DiviDenDs pAyAble
Dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recorded as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

Audit fee disclosures are included on page 41.
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2 staFF costs
         2009 2008

Average number of employees  
Administration         2 2

Disclosures regarding Directors’ remuneration, share-based payments and pension entitlements are included on pages 23 to 24.

3 Fixed asset investments
The fixed asset investments in subsidiary companies, consist of FRS 20 charges in relation to subsidiary equity-based transactions. 

4 debtors
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings        13,565 9,465
Prepayments         32 20

         13,597 9,485

5 creditors
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings (due within one year)       5,221 3,368
Accruals and deferred income (due within one year)       37 23
Trade creditors         171 106

         5,429 3,497

6 called uP share caPital
         2009 2008 
         £ £

Authorised  
83,434,910 (2008: 83,434,910) ordinary shares of £0.01 each       834,349 834,349

         £ £

Allotted, called up and fully paid  
58,333,333 (2008: 58,333,333) ordinary shares of £0.01 each       583,333 583,333

movements in equity shAre cApitAl
          Number 
          of shares

At beginning and end of year          58,383,333

7 share Premium account
          £000

At 31 August 2008 and 31 August 2009         1,108

8 ProFit and loss account
          £000

At 31 August 2008          4,407
Profit for the financial year          3,744
Dividend paid          (1,564)
FRS 20 charge in relation to equity-settled transactions        102

At 31 August 2009          6,689
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9 reconciliation oF movement in shareholders’ Funds
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Opening shareholders’ funds         6,098 1,973
Profit for the financial year         3,744 5,564
Purchase of own shares for treasury         — (564)
FRS 20 charge in relation to equity-settled transactions       102 110
Dividend paid         (1,564) (985)

Net movement in shareholders’ funds        2,282 4,125

Closing shareholders’ funds         8,380 6,098

10 dividends
         2009 2008 
         £000 £000

Amount recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year   
Final dividend for the year ended 31 August 2008 of 1.7 pence (2008: £nil)      985 —
Interim dividend for year ended 31 August 2009 of 1.0 pence per share (2008: 1.7 pence)    579 985

         1,564 985

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 August 2009 of 0.5 pence (2008:1.7 pence)    290 985

The proposed final dividend is to be approved by shareholders at the AGM on 15 January 2010.

11 contingent liabilities
The Company has given unlimited guarantees, secured by a fixed and floating charge over all the assets of the Company, in respect of 
bank borrowings by certain other Group undertakings in the Superglass Group. At 31 August 2009 the potential liability was £21,610,000 
(2008: £24,089,000). The Company has also provided a guarantee to the Scottish Executive in relation to a Regional Selective Assistance 
grant which at 31 August 2009 amounted to £800,000 (2008: £800,000).

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its Group, the Company 
considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as 
a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.



four year reCord

Income extracts 
       2009  2008 2007 2006* 
       £000  £000 £000  £000

Turnover       38,133 41,138 44,029 43,493

Operating profit       2,173  5,058  5,110  5,787
Net financing cost       (1,540) (2,106) (3,548) (3,707)

Profit before tax       633 2,952 1,562 2,080

Profit after tax       442  2,125 982 1,260

Non recurring items       —  — 1,675  — 
Amortisation       4,393 4,393 4,393   4,596

Adjusted earnings       4,835 6,518 7,050  5,856

Earnings per share       0.8p 3.7p 1.7p* 2.2p*
Adjusted earnings per share       8.3p 11.3p 12.2p* 10.2p*

Dividend per share       1.5p  3.4p —  —

Balance sheet extracts    

Fixed assets       15,043  15,844 15,551 14,782

Intangible assets       18,598  22,989 27,378  31,770 

Inventories       1,981  3,293 3,088   1,536
Trade and other receivables       2,612 3,490 3,920  2,678
Trade and other payables       7,762 10,087 11,423 9,794

Capital employed       2,991 4,011 3,325 1,643

Net debt       21,696 24,130 27,140 29,924

* Restated from originally reported earnings per share figures onto a basis consistent with the current year.

* 2006 relates to the 17 months ended 31 August 2006.

Superglass’ commitment to environmental issues is reflected in this 
Annual Report. It has been printed on Revive 100 Silk which is 100% 
recycled from post consumer waste.

This document was printed by Beacon Press using , their environmental 
print technology which minimises the impact of printing on the environment. 
All energy used comes from renewable sources, vegetable based inks have 
been used and 98% of all dry waste associated with this production has 
been diverted from landfill. The printer is a carbon neutral company.

Both the printer and the paper mill are registered to ISO 14001.



Superglass Holdings Plc
Thistle Industrial Estate
Kerse Road 
Stirling 
Scotland FK7 7QQ 
Tel:  01786 451170 
Fax:  01786 465663  
Website:  www.superglass.co.uk


	Corporate statement
	Our highlights
	Chairman’s statement
	Proactive agenda
	Recycled product
	Flexible production facility
	Business review Chief executive officer’s review
	Business review Finance Director’s review
	Directors and advisers
	Directors’ report
	Directors’ remuneration report
	Corporate social responsibility
	Corporate governance
	Statement of directors’ responsibilities
	Independent auditors’ report
	Consolidated income statement
	Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
	Consolidated balance sheet
	Consolidated cash flow statement
	Notes forming part of the financial statements
	1 Accounting policies
	Statement of compliance
	Basis of preparation
	Restatement of certain prior year comparatives
	Basis of consolidation
	Foreign currency
	Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group
	Derivative financial instruments
	Property, plant and equipment
	Intangible assets and goodwill
	Trade and other receivables
	Inventories
	Cash and cash equivalents
	Impairment
	Calculation of recoverable amount
	Reversals of impairment

	Interest-bearing borrowings
	Employee benefits
	Defined contribution plans

	Provisions
	Revenue
	Expenses
	Operating lease payments
	Finance lease payments
	Net financing costs

	Grant income
	Taxation
	Earnings per share
	Segment reporting
	Share-based payment transactions

	2 Segmental reporting
	3 Profit before tax and auditors’ remuneration
	Audit and non-audit fee disclosures (all included within administrative expenses)

	4 Staff numbers and costs
	5 Finance income and expense
	6 Taxation
	Recognised in the income statement
	Reconciliation of effective tax rate

	7 Dividends
	8 Property, plant and equipment
	9 Intangible assets
	10 Subsidiaries
	11 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
	Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
	Movement in deferred tax during the period

	12 Inventories
	13 Trade and other receivables
	14 Cash and cash equivalents
	15 Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
	Terms and debt repayment schedule
	Finance lease liabilities

	16 Financial instruments
	Overview
	Credit risk
	Liquidity risk
	Market risk
	Credit risk
	Liquidity risk
	Fair values
	Estimation of fair values
	Trade receivables and payables
	Cash and cash equivalents
	Derivative financial instruments: interest rate swaps and forward curency contracts
	Bank loans
	Obligations under finance leases


	17 Trade and other payables
	18 Employee benefits
	Defined contribution plans

	19 Capital and reserves
	Reconciliation of movement in capital and reserves

	20 Share capital
	21 Share-based Payments
	Savings Related Share Option (SAYE) Scheme
	Long-term incentive plan (CSOP )

	Earnings per share
	23 Operating leases
	24 Commitments and contingencies
	25 Accounting estimates and judgments
	Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

	26 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
	27 Related parties
	Identity of related parties
	Transactions with key management personnel
	Transactions with defined contribution pension schemes


	UK GAAP Pa rent Company Balance Sheet
	Notes to the UK GAAP parent company financial statements
	1 Significant accounting policies
	Basis of preparation
	Profit and loss account
	Related party transactions
	Taxation
	Deferred taxation
	Investments
	Share-based payments
	Treasury shares
	Provisions and contingent liabilities
	Classification of financial instruments
	Dividends payable

	2 Staff costs
	3 Fixed asset investments
	4 Debtors
	5 Creditors
	6 Called up share capital
	Movements in equity share capital

	7 Share premium account
	8 Profit and loss account
	9 Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds
	10 Dividends
	11 Contingent liabilities

	Four year record



